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Aspris Holdeo Limited
Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022

The Directors present their strategic report of the period from 28 July 2021 to 31 August 2022,

Throughoul the document, references to the “Company™ refer to Aspris Holdeo Limited. References to the “Group”
refer to Aspris Holdeo Limited and ils subsidiaries. All amounts are presented in GBP Lm, unless otherwise stated.

Principal activity
The principal activity of the company is to act as an investment holding company,

The Group is a leading provider of specialist education and care services to young people in the UK. Educating and
caring far a wide spectrum of specialist education and mental healthcare needs, including autism, learning difficulties,
social, emotional and mental heslth condilions (SEMEH). In addition, the Group provides specialist education and
mendal health services to young people and adults respectively across the Middle East. The Group operates via iwe
primary clivisions:

e The UK divisions provide education and residential care and assessment for children with specialist
emotional and behavioural difficulties or autistic spectrum disorders,

¢ The Middle East divisfons provide cducation to young people in the UAE, and mental healtheare and
wellbeing services to adults and young people in UAE and KSA.

Business Review
Development of {he business

The Company was incorporated on the 28 July 2021, and on the 31 August 2021 acquired 100% of the sharcholding
of Aspris Children’s Services Limited (“ACSL”) (previously named Priory Education Services Limited) through the
100% owned subsidiary Aspris Bideo Limited. These financial statements represent the results of the activities of the
Coempany since incorporation, the activities of the Aspris group since the date of acquisition and the subsequent
acquisitions and disposals described belosy. Prior to the acquisition of ACSL the Group did not have any trading or
operations and so the metrics quoted below as pait of the ‘Performance of the Business® seclion are for the twelve
months ending 3 1st August 2022,

QOn 28 Junuary 2022 the wholly owned ACSL purchased [00% of the shareholding in SC Topco Limited. From this
date the consolidated results aiid activities of SC Topeo Limited (*Sandcastle Care') ave represented in these financial
stalements.

On 31 March 2022 ACSL acquired 100% of the shareholding in Hollybluc Healthcare (Arden) limited, latterly
renamed Aspris (Arden) Limited. From this date the results and activities of this acquired entity are represented in
these financial statements, Please see note 17 to the financial statements for additional information on the above
business combinations completed during the period,

In addition fo the Group’s primary focus of providing high quality education and care to all those within its services,
the Group has also been focused on the successful completion of the following key developments:

¢ Separation from the Priory Group of companies. Whilst the operations of ACSL were largely autonomous
from those of the wider Priory Group, Aspris was the recipient of central support services provided to it by
the Priory Group. These services continued under a transitional services arrangement agreed at the time of
the Group’s acquisition of ACSL. This transitional stage included the implementation of Aspris® own
standalone systems and support infrastructure, the process of which was completed by 1% January 2023, with
all services received under this transitional arrangenent ceased to be provided from that date.




Aspris Holdco Limited

Strategic Repeort for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Business Review (continued)

Development of the business (continned)

Acquisition and inlegration of Sandeastle Care inlo the Aspris Group, Sandcastle Care provides residential
care places for over 100 young people, primarily in the Norlh West of the UK. Thesc services are similar in
nature to those already provided by the Group. The integration and incotporation of this business into the
Group has been a focus for members of the management team during the period.

¢ Review of Group strategy and lohg-term plan. Following the successful separation from Priery Group, the

Group has underiaken a broad review of the key strategic direction and objectfives of the business. The
completion of this process provides the overarching framework within which the business is managed and
directed by the Board end senior management.

¢ Continued expansion of our Middle East operations. Since establishing a presence in the UAE in 2017,

ACSL has steadily grown the provision of services in the region to cater for the education and care needs of
both young people and adults, including geographic cxpansion into KSA. Whilst the Middle East division
remuains small relative to the primary UK operations (please refer {o note 4 (o the financial statements [or
the split of revenue for the period ending 31 August 2022), the region represents a central part of the
Group's development strategy.

Perfermance of the Business

The key financial and non-financial performance indicalors during the period were as follows:

Key IKPIs 2022
Turnover £179.2m
Operating profil before Impairment losses end Exceptional costs £23.1m
Quality 83.2%
Capacity 1,910
Occupaney 1,660
Occupancy % 86.9%
Annual Growih in Middle East patient appoinlments 51.1%
Nates:

1. Operating profit measure ol £23.1m is equal 1o the Group’s Operating loss £4.7m stated befare Exceptiona! ¢osts of £7.8m, Impairment

2.
3.

losses of £1%.7m and Other losses of £0.3m

Quality, Capacity and Occupaney metrics relate to the UK business only, unless slated

Capacity an Occupancy quoted are avezages for the period on a noa-proforma basis, with dual placements included as a single unit of
capacity and ccenpancy




Aspris Holdco Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Business Review (continued)

Quality of our services

A primary indicator of the Group’s performance is the level of Quality of the services we provide fo those in our
care.

Regulatory requirements differ across the Group, though the vast majority of our UK services are regulated by the
Office for Standards in Education, Children’s Services and Skills (‘Ofsted’), and in Scotland and Wales by their
tocal eguivalent. All schools and children’s homes must be licensed, and the relevant regulators award quality
ratings to each service. In Abu Dhabi, the school operated by the Group is regulated by the Abu Dhabi Departnient
of Education and Knowledge (FADEK} but is also subject to British School Overscas inspections. In addition, a
limited number of pur services are also regulated the Care Quality Commission (*CQC’) in England, and, in
Scotland, Wales, Northern Ireland, and the Middle East, by the [ocal equivalent.

Within the UK. the Group achieved an average % of facilities rated as Good or above by their respective regulators
of 83.2%. This is above the national benchinark level published by Ofsted but is below where the business®
objectives are in this area. The provision of the best quality service is a key priority and the business is focused on
continuous improvement in this area, supported by increased investiment in our support functions that directly or
indirectly support the quality of our services.

Within the Middle East, the Group’s specialist education cperations in Abu Dhabi (the fiest dedicated autism school
in Abu Dhabt for Bmirati students in partnership with ADEK) underwent the first major inspection of a dedicaled
autism school in the region. The outcome of this inspection was formally announced on 1% November 2022, with the
school achieving an Qutstanding rating acrass all areas. This further demonstrates the Group’s established delivery
of exceplional level specialist education sevvices beyond the Group’s primary UK market,

Results for the period

The Group delivered high quality services to meet the needs of a wide spectrum of young people, families, Local
Autherities and communities across the UK and Middle East. Wiih an average number of 1,660 young people using
our services in the UK during the period and 180 young people in the Middle East. In addition, the velume of ouipatient
appointments in our Middle Cast Wellbeing centres inereased by 51.1% vs the equivalent prior period, driven partly
by the opening of two ncw centres in Abu Dhabi and Saudi Arabia.

The results for the year are set out in the consolidated Income Staterment on page 26 and the financial position of the
Group as at 31 August 2022 is set out in the consolidated Statement of Financial Position on page 28. Group revenue
for the year was £179.2m and Operating profil before exceptional costs, impairment loss and other [osses was £23.1m,
which represents an operating margin of 12.9% of revenue, Key factors of the operating profitabilily of the business
include the number of service users in our facilities, the availability and cost of staffing and the cost of associated non-
wage costs required to suppart the young people and our eperations more generally.

The Group’s net loss for the period was £27,1m, which was after charging £19.7m impairment to goodwill refating to
the Sandcastle division, and after £7.8m of exceptional costs, these primarily refale to the costs incurred in relation to
the corporate transactions undertaken and ouilined above and in note 17. Further details of these exceptional charges
and impairment are given in notes 10 and 15 to the financial statements.

The Group’s financial position and underlying operating cash generation is positive, with net assets of £92.0m at the |
close of the period and net cash flow from operating activities during the period of £34,2m,



Aspris [oldeco Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Business Review (continued
Results for the period (continued)

The largest component of our cost base is the wages and related oncosts of our staff, which represenls 67% of operating
costs,

Staff are our primary resource and the Group priovitises the wellbeing, retention and recruitment of our workforee.
This includes increased investment in staff wages, but also in a range of measures designed (o increase staff wellbeing
and engagement.

Staff shortages have been a feature of the reporting period, with a small number of our availabic residential places
being offfine due lo these constraints, Despite these factors the financial performance of the Group was inline with the
original business plan supporting the acquisition of ACSL.

Future developments and s{rafeey

Management consider the Group to be in a good posilion to expand the provision of its services in both the UK and
Middle East, Building on its existing high quality provision and strong reputation within cach region to provide
essential serviecs 1o a greater number of people in the communities tha it serves.

The Group strategy prioritises the improvement of qualily and utilisation across all our existing facilities, in parallel
with continuing to expand the specialist education aspects of the business. With the planned opening of new education
capacily at existing and newly identified sites, being complemented by the targeted and selective acquisition of
existing specialist education providers.

Following the close of the reporting pericd, and consistent with this strategy, the Group completed the acquisition of
a specialist education provider in the UK, BHIS Heldings Limited. The acquired business, and its wholly owned
subsidiaries, provide speclalist education for up to approximately 100 primary and secondary school aged young
people in the East of England. To support this acquisition, and the Group’s broader growth objectives, the Group
entered into an extension of its available external debt facilities with its existing lenders. This new growth facility was
agreed and effective from 8§ February 2023,

In addition, after the close of the reporting period the Group completed a reorganisetion of its UK opcrations. This
reorganisation is aimed at improving and strengthening the management structure to increass focus on delivering on
the Group’s objectives for all aspects of our services, including optimising staffing, and thereby improving utilisation
across our portfolio, by increasing fransparency and management communication through all levels of the business.

[n the Middle East, the Group is growing via the maturing of its recently opencd Welibeing Centres and via wider
opportunities to expand the education offering across region. Tn KSA the Group opened a Wellheing Centre in
Riyadh through its joint venture with a local partner that was entered into in 2020. The Group continues to view
current and future local partnerships in the region as a key avenuc for growth.




Aspris Holdeo Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 Aungust 2022 (continued)

Principal Itisks and Uncevtainties

The Group can be impacted by a range of external factors. The principal faciors are the availability and retention of
the appropriate number of trained and qualified staff, the macrc-economic environment resulting in increased inflation
and increased interest rates, changes in the UK government’s policy towards the funding of specialist edueation and
care, changes in the regulatory regime, competitive threats from other providers and the loss of key individuals. The
following arc the most significant risks and uncertainties facing the Group.

Faflure to comply with regulation and increased regulatory costs

All of the Group’s services are subject to a high level of regulation by various regulatory bodics. Laws and
regulations are evolving within the sector (and may be introduced in the future) that could impose increased costs on
the Group’s operations. The Group is unable to predict the content of new legislation and/or regulations and their
effect on its business.

Inspections by regulators are carried out on both an announced and unannounced basis, dependent on the specific
regulatory provisions relating to different care or education services. The failure to comply with relevant regulations,
that therefore leads to the determination of regulatory non-compliance, or the failure of the Group to cure any defect
noted in an ingpection report could result in the revocation ot imposition of conditions on the registration of any
service or a decrease in or cessation of, services provided by the Group al one or more of its facilities.

Teo mitigate these risks, the quality of care is monitored by an experienced team and through the establishment of
robust policies and procedures. The team ate independent of the aperating divisions and report direcily {o the Board.
Homes are regnlariy audited by the team 1o ensure compliance with care standards and action plans are draswn up in
appropriate cases. Risks also mitigated by investing in the iegal and compiiance team, and in recruitment and
training. Where changes in legistation can be predicted, the Group models the impact the changes will have in
advance of the legislation being implemented,

Employces

The Group’s performance depends on its operational staff at our schools and residential homes. The managers of our
facilitics, and their respective site teams, are essential for the provision of our services. The loss of key individuals
and fthe inability to recruit people with the right experience and skills from the local community could adversely
impact the Geoup's results.

‘The relevant [abour markets for certain of our services have becomie more challenging over the reporling period and
may continue to be challenging, or become more 5o, in the future. This may lead to an increase in the number of
stafl vacancies across the Group and therefore restrict the proportion of our capacity that can be fully operational
and/or slow future growth prospects, Whilst the challenges have been less evident in the Education portion of the
business, as compared to the residential aspects of our services, it has nevertheless been a factor aoross the Group.

To mitigate these issues the Group has implemented a wide range of measures to enhance both our recruitment and
retention of staff. These initiatives are led by dedicated senior management from our Human Resources department,
along with our Learning and Development functon, and are targeted at improving overail employee welfare and o
cnsure our staff offering, both financial and non-financial, is competitive within the markets in which we operate.

Specifically, regarding staff pay, the Dircctors take steps to ensure competitive salary levels across the Group and
have sought to increase across safarics across the Group during the period fo aid retention and recruitment, with
specific consideration to the cost-ofsliving increases on all staff caused by the macro-economic environment,

However, there is 2 risk that these salary levels are not sufficient to improve the Group's staff metrics and therefore
further constraints on our services due to staft shortages may be possible.



Aspris Holdeco Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Principal Risks angd Uncertainties (continuad)

Non-Wage supplies and cost inflation

In addition to workforce remuncration, the Group also incurs costs on a range of supplies, including food, education
supplies, energy/utilities and rental expenses. The current macio-economic backdrop places increasing pressure on
{he availability and cost of certain key suppliss,

With energy, and other bulk product supply, challenges across Evrope driving higher inflation levels than in
previous years there is increased price pressure on the Group’s cost base. There is a risk that these costs increase
finther and, whilst they are a minority of the Group’s cost base, increases could still be material,

In addilion, there is a risk that certain supplies will take fonger to source and therefore substitute producls may need
to be found, there is a risk this could cause distuption to our services and that alternative supplies may be more
costly than those supplies which they replace.

[n addition, certain supplies, such as food, are sourced from a low number of major national suppliers and therefore
there may be a risk that disruption of service at one supplier, or price changes by those suppliers, could have an impact
on the Group.

To mitigate these areas the Group has a dedicated procurement function focused on optimising our sources, costs of
and securify of supply. The Group engages on a regular besis with alt our key suppliers to ensure effective managemen(
of these risks. Tn addition, the Group seeks to agree pricing and security of supply on a forward basis where possible
and appropriate, for example on our energy supplies, to increase visibility over cost and reduce supply side risks.
Management of these risks include maintaining relationships with secondary source supplies to ensure options are
available to mitigate distuptions in supply from a particular provider.

Less of revenue from contracts with UK local authorities

A substantial proportion of the Group’s UK revenue derives from publicly funded Local Authorities. The Group
expects to continue to rely on the ability and willingness of these bodies to pay for the Group’s services. Whilst
there is an obligation for Local Authorities to fund the provision of such services to young people there is a risk that
cither budget constraints or other financial pressures could causc such publicly funded bodies to allocate jess meney
to the types of service that the Group provides, or that political change or policy changes mean that fewver services
are contracled from independent sector providers,

In addition, there Is a risk that these Local Authorities are not able to meet the increased costs of us viably providing
services at certain facilities, due to the above-mentioned cost pressures.

To mitigate these risks the Group regularly assesses services provided to ensure they represent value for money and
where necessary reposilions services to align with demand. Through the Group’s dedicated Bidding and
Commissioning team, and olher members of our senior management team, the Group engages in regular
comtaunication with our Local Authorities customers to ensure these is clear and open dialogue with our key
customers.



Aspris Holdco Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (eontinued)

IT security and Data Protection

The Group®s IT infrastructure is an integral part of its operating capability. This infrastructure provides connectivity,
hardware and software applications to ail of our facilities and central fonctions. Furthermote, the Group holds large
volumes of sensitive data, a portion of which resides within our 1T environment.

There is a risk thal the systems or applications fail or are subject {0 a security breach that temporarily prevents their
use and therefore impacts our services, In addition, such an event may compromisc sensitive data held within the
Group relating to ils customers, which could expose the Group to further liabilify due to such a breach.

The Group invests significantly in meeting these potential risks. With a dedicated 1T department reasonable for the 1T
environment and security, complimented by external expert advice and services procured to enhance key aspects of
Data Protection and Cyber security.

Impact from the risks related to the Covid-19 pandemic

The global cutbreak of COVID-19 in 2020 represented a significant source of uncertainty within the wider
mecroeconomic environment, including the sectors inwhich the Group operates. Disruption was experienced by most
sectors, and the Group's services were not immune to these impacts.

Given the nature of our services the Group continued to operate its full service provision, with all schools and homes
remaining open in the UK, and our Middle East Wellbeing centres moving successfully to an online appoinatment
based model. The leams across the Group performed with outstanding professionalism to ensure we conlinued to
deliver essential education and care to all those that rely on our services.

Whilst there were notable staff absences due to self-isolation, and the resulting operational challenges, the long term
financial impact on the Group was not significant, and with the exception of the longer term constraints that have
impacted the general labour market referenced above, the Group is corrently not impacted by the pandemic.

The Dirvectors believe any further similar outbreak would be met with a similar successful response, but there is a risk
that a new Covid variant, or other pandemic, may have a greater impact on the Group’s ability to provide its services,

To mitigate this the Group has clear and robust infection control policies, including contingency planning for siaffing
in the event of a further cutbreak.

10
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Principal Rislis asd Uncertainties (continued)

Financial risk management

The Group is exposed 1o financial risks in the form of credlt, interost and liguidity tisls which ariae in the normal
course of business. The primary financial risks that the Group is exposed to are noted below, for further detail on these
financial risks please see note 27.

Credit vislk

Financial instruments which potentially expose the Group to credit risk consist primavily of cash and trade receivables.
Cash is enly deposited with mejor financial institutions that satisfy cerlain credit criteria,

Credit risk is not considered 1o be significant given thal over 90% of revenue is derived from publicly funded entities,
and payment is taken in advance or at time of treatment for privately funded healthcare services af our Wellbeing
centres.

Inferest rate risk

The Group is financed by a combination of Senior and Revolving external credit facilities. All the external debt of the
Group contains & variable clement which is linked to the Sterling Overnight Index Average, published by the Bank of
England. Senior loans are repayable on 31 August 2028, and Revolving facilities are repayable on 31 August 2024,

The Group regularly reviews the options available to it for the hedging of interest rate risk, but currently does not have
a hedged component to the interest burden on its external debt. In Hght of prevailing market conditions, and the high
cost of hedging instruments, the Directors believe the Group has sufficient capacity lo address the risk of inlerest rate
rises.

Liquicity risk

The Group prepares annuat and monthly cash flow forecasts reflecting known commitments and anticipated projects,
The Group has sufficient available facilities and cash flows from profits to fund current commitments. The Group has
access to a Revolving Credil Facility that is available to support the Group's operational liquidity requirements at the
signing of the financial statements the majority of this Revolving Credit Facility was undrawn,
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Section 172(1) statcmnent

The following Section 172 statement, which is required by the Companies Act 2006, describes howv the Directors
have had regard to the masters st out in 5172 (1a to if) including key decisions and matters that are of strategic
importance to the Group. The Board of Dircctors, in line with their duties under 172 of the Companies Act 2006,
act in a way they consider, in good faith would be most likely to promote the success of the Group for the benefit of
its members as a whole, and in doing so have regard to a range of meattets when making decisions for the long term,

We aim to pursue an open and transparent dislogue with our key stakeholders in order to develop a clear
understanding of their needs, asscss their perspectives and monitor theiv impact on our strategic objectives. As part
of the Board®s decision-making process, the Directors consider the potential impact of decisions on relevant
stakcholders whilst also having regard to a humber of broader factors, including the impact of the Group’s
operalions on the community and environmest, responsible business practices and the likely consequences of
decisions in the long term.

Key staleholders

Ouw key stakeholders are our service users (and their tamilies), cur workforce, owr regulators and our investors and
lenders. Qur commissioners, supplicrs, and the communities we uperate within are also important siakeholder groups.
All key Board decisions take into account the impact on the relevant stakeholder groups, as follows:

Service users and their families

The Group provides specialist education, care and mental health services to a wide range of young people in the UK,
and to young people and adulis in the Middle Fast. Those to whom services are provided, and their families, arc
fundamental to every aspecl of the Group’s operations and objectives. The Directors monitor the quality of scrvice
provision to ensure the highest levels of care are provided by a highly skilled and well equipped workforce. In addition,
the Directors monitor the condition and approprialeness of the environment across the Group’s facilities to ensure the
physical environment in which services are provided are appropriately configured and maintained ta the high standards
required for leading education and care provision. Feedback is received directly through our operational {eams, who
interact directly with service users and their families, and through multiple channels of communication to senior
mansgement to ensure issues can be raised and escalated cutside of any specific care team or facilily, The directors
are committed to open communication and transparcney regarding alt aspecls of our service delivery, and ensuring
the Group’s operations deliver service provision to meet the specific needs of each individual service user,

Warlforce

Qurworkforee is key to providing safe and effective care to those whormn we support, The Group employs 4 wide array
of specialist cducation and care professionals and engagement with those employees is paramount. The Directors
monitor the results of staff surveys, both regular and ad hog, together with the Group’s system of employee forums
which occur at local, regional and national level, meaning the Board is able to discuss human resourcing matters with
Lthe interests of its workforce at heart. An example of actions taken in response Lo the feedback generated through these
channels is the articulation of tailored caveer pathiwvays available to all Group employees. Annval salary reviews are
undertaken with reference to the importance of colleague retention, changes in the National Living Wage, and
commercial factors. The Directors are committed to communicating the results of any wage reviews in a transparent
manner. Further information in respect of employees is set out on the Directors® report.

Investors

Cur shareholders register consists of a majority shareholders, Standbyco 35 B.V. who are wholly owned by Waterland
Private Equity Investments B.V,, and a number of minority shareholders which includes our largest single landlord
{Medical Properties Trust) and various members of the Group’s management team. The Board engages regularty with
its major shareholders in order to, inter alia, develop long-term and short-term business strategy, decide upon resource
aliocation and consider key business risks. This includes regular reporting to both Waterland Private Equity and
Medical Propetties Trust to ensure clear alignment and transparency over Group petformance and direction.

12
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 {continued)

Section 172(1) statement (continued)

Regulators

We are subject to a high degree of regulation, partieularly in refation 1o the registration and ongoing inspection of our
sorvices, The “business revicw” scolion above autline the key regulatory bodics. Remults of inspeetions and more
general reports made by the rcgulators are discusscd by the Bosvd where appropriate, and onpeing dialogue is
taintained in order Lo respond with agility to emerging areas of focus. Sonte of our regulators also have responsibility
for monitering the ongeing financial viability of our business — senior management meet with the regulators
perlodically to engage in this process. Staff bonuses schemes at all levels of the organisation are at least partly linked
to the outcomes of internal and external quality metrics.

Customers

The majority of our revenue is generated from the provision of services 1o Local Authorities and ather public bodies,
with a minority of revenues generated from private funding. In all cases Is importan! that we evelve our service
provision to salis{y local demand (the needs of which can change over time), meet changing education and care criteria
and provide such services at the right time and place al an appropriate cost. Communication with customers is ongoing
both lecally and nationally, and the Board will consider the requirements of eustomers when allocating resources for
new or amended service offerings, and agreeing a general approach Lo funding.

Suppliers

We gim to treat our suppliers fairly and work in partnership with them as they provide essential goods and services to
the Group. It is our policy to adhere to agreed credit terms. We maintain strong supplier relationships across cur supply
chains, lod hy the Group's dedicated procurement function, Qur key suppliers also includes our contracted worklorce,
agency workers and related staffing agencies in the teaching and care professions, who play an esseniial role in
delivering quality services. For all supplies we engage in trangparent and robust tendering and onboarding processes
to deliver fair and sustainable ouicomes for suppliers and for the Group.

Communities

The Group operates nationally and many of our facilities are embedded within the wider community. It is therefore
important tliat the Impact of our operations on the comrunitics we operate in are laken into consideration. We are
also cognisant of the need tc consider the overall environment when contracting with suppliers, or considering any
significant development projects, for example.

Principal decisions

The Group defines principal decisions as those that arc material, or of strategic importance to the Group, and also
those thal have a significant impact on any of our key stakeholder groups. By way of example, a selection of principal
decisions taken by the Board during the yesr is set oul below, highlighting the primary stakeholder groups affected
and some of the considerations taken into account in reaching those principal decisions.

Approval of the 2022/23 budget

The Board approved, priot to the start of the new financial and academic year, the final budget for the fvelve months
ending 3 1st August 2023. The budget includes forecasts for each existing facility as well as central functions in order
to acrive at an aggregated business plan, The key stakehoider groups affected are our investoss and our workforce,
Some of the key consideralions taken into accouni included the balance of delivering ever greater quality of services,
improved staff retention and growth of our services to service a greater number of people.

i3
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Section 172(1) stafement {continued)

TFacilily refurbishments, expansions and service changes

As part of the 2022/23 budget, and looking ahead into the medium tenm, the Board approved a number of significant
capital expenditure projects in order to refurbish and/or expand existing facilities, retool locations to better reflect
demand for services and consider selective additional property acquisitions to expand certain service lines. The key
stakeholder groups affected are our investors, our commissioners and current and future service users, Some of the
key considerations taken into account included the likety return on invesiment of such projects, the ability of 2 project
to meet the requitements of commissioners in providing a particular service, and our ability to safely and effectively
operate the service.

Anti-corruption and anti-bribery matters

The Group has an established and Robust Anti-Bribery and Corruption processes and controls in place, These are
supporied by an internal audit function that has the mandate to perform announced and unannounced inspections and
investigation into any transactions ccourring at a local, regional or group level.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Trevor M Torringtor
Director Director

The Forge,

43 Church Street West,
Woking.

Guz21 eHT

21 March 2023




Aspris Holdco Limited

Directors’ Report for the period ended 31 August 2022

The Directors present their report and the consolidated financial statements for the period from 28 July 2021 to 31
August 2022,

II]CO]‘]!OI'R tion

The Cumpany was incorporated in England and Wales and commenced trading on 28 July 2021,

The consolidated financial stalements have been prepared in aceordance with International financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) and the IFRS Interpretations Commnitiee (“IFRS IC”) interpretations as adopled by the UK,

This report should be read in conjunction with the strategic report from page 4. The Group has chosen in accordance
with Seetion 414C (2) of the Companies Act 2006 to set out in the strategic report the following which the Dircctors
believe to be of strategic importance:

Business review;

Future development and sirategy;
Principal rigk and uncerlainties; and
Financial risk management,

* & & @

Directors of the Group

't'he Directors, who held office during the petiod, were as follows:
Oliver I Bevan (appaiated 28 July 2021)

Ryan Hallworth (appointed 28 July 2021)

Ryan D Jervis {Appointed 31 August 2021)

Trevor M Torrington (Appointed 31 August 2021)

Dividends

The Board has not reconunended a dividend for the reporting peried and has no current plan o do so. ,

Is |



Aspris Holdco Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Staterent of Divectors® Responsibilities

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the financial stalements in
aceordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that faw the
Directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK adopted International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs). Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they
are satis{ied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the
company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to;

e selcet snitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

» make judgements and accounting cstimates that are veasonable and prudent;

¢ state whether applicable UK adopted Intermational Finencial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) have been
followed, subject to any material depariures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it {s inappropriate to presume that the
company will continuc in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficlent to show and explain the
Group’s and the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group and the company and cnable them {e ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006, They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and the company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularitics.

Corporate governance
The Gsoup has robusl Governance and oversight of &l aspeets of the business:

¢ The Board meet at least six times per snnum and are responsible for the overall management and direction
of all aspects of the Group.

¢ The Executive Commiltee, which is Chaired by the Chief Executive Officer and includes senior management
from across all aspects of the business, meets monthly and are the primary executive team for the execution
and governance of the day to day running of the Group.

s Quality and Compliance committee, which is Chaired by the Director of Governance and includes senior
operational and function leads divectly related to education and care quality, meets monthly and is the senior
oversight of operational quality and risk.

+ Performance and Commercial Review committee, which is Chaired jointly by the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chief Financial Officer, meets monthly and is the senior oversight of the financia! and commercial
performance of the business.

* Independent inspections, in line with the relevant legislation {regululion 44 of The Children's Homes
(England) Repgulations 2013)) the Group has a rolling programme of independent inspections that report into
the Executive committee and above quality commitiee. These provide independent oversight over the quality
delivery of appropriate and compliant education and care services,



Agpris Holdeo Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Going cancern

The Board reviews forecasts of the Growp’s projeclern trading and associated Jiquidity requirenients based on a range
of scenarios (o ensute it has sufficient cash to meet its operational and financial needs, These forecasts are underpinned
by detailed and embedded forecasting processes and procedures to provide grunular visibility over both the near term
and long-term liguidity requirements of the Group, to inform the Directars decision making on all key financial
mallers, The Directors consider both short term and long-term forecasts for the business, ranging from rolling three-
month daily liguidity forecasting, annual budget and periodic intra year reforecasling processes, and longer term 3
yeat long range plans for the Group. Each of these projects the liquidity and covenant headroom for the Group.

The Group made a loss before tax of £27.4m for the period ended 31 August 2022, this loss in the current period is
driven by the non-cash impairment of goodwill (see note 15) of £19.7m and exceplional costs of £7.8m, excluding
these items the Group made a loas of £0.Fm and an operating profit of £23.1m. The Group is forecast to make an
operating profit doring the going concern period. The Group generates sufficient cash to cover its lizbilities and surplus
balances are held as cash reserves to invest in the Group end support the business in future periods. At 31 August 2022
the Group had debt of £165.0m due o its external fenders and finance lease Habilities of £160.5m. No loans were due
ta our sharchiolders,

These considerations include the availability of committed, but undrawn, debt facilities that ave available to the Group
to support general corporate and working capitaf purposes. As al 31% August 2022 these available but undrawn
facilities were £19,7m

The Dircctors assessment of going concern considers three primary arcas:
1. Iey fundamental business factors

The Group’s primary business, and majority of the Group's revenues and cashflows, is penerated via the provision
of services with specific characteristics thal are key in considering downside risk:

Provision of essexntial services

The group provides essential education and care services to meel the needs of a wide spectrum of young people in
our society. The demand for these services has increased over the last decade and continues to do so across the
counlry. Ceriain service aveas are slated as a Governmental priority, hence funding is ringfenced for many of the
areas the Group provides.

Diversified payer base with fow credit risk across the significant majority 6f the Group

The majority of the Group’s revenues and cashflows arc generated from customers that are publicly funded. This
Payor includes over 180 Local Authority customers across England, Wales and Scotland. In the majority of case
each LA services and fees are provided on bespoke comimercial terms and paid for separately by cach customer,
significantly reducing the customer concentration risk.

Established position as a trusted provider

The Group is one of the leading providers of such services in the UK. The Group holds long standing relationships,
oflen held at both operational and management levels, with ils individual customers. The Group has consistently
delivered above national benchmarks for quality service provision and continues to place, as a priority, the
provision of the highest quality care to meet the needs of everyone it serves.

Strength, depth and experience of the Growp's meanagement leam and infrasirncttire

Over many years tho Group has developed, and invested in, the strength and experience of its workforce and
management team, These factors enable the natiomwvide provision of our services to be managed within a rigorous
risk management framewark, lo respond 1o risks as they arise.
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Aspris Holdco Timited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 {continued)

Going concern (continued)

Versatility of skills to meet demand changes

The skitls embedded in our workforce, and the nature of many of our facilitics, are such thet we can be
responsive ta changes in the needs and demands of the people we care for, their funders and regulators. This
agility reduces the (ime taken to adapt the Group to best address its core markets.

Cash flow visibility

The majority of young people in the UK that we care for remain within our setvices for morg than a year, and the
payment value and timing for the related services are latgely defined at the ontset of each placement. T'hesc
[actors provide a base for pood visibility over core trading performance and the working capital requirements of
the business. Thereby leading to good levels of cash flow visibility over the near to medium term.

2. Assessment of the principal risks and hmpact of a severe but plausible dowunside scenario

In assessing the potential impact of a range of risk factors on the business the Directors have considered the
likely impact on the Group of a range of risks specific to the relevant business sector, as well as the compound
impact of risk factors in the broader macro environment that have evolved since the balance sheet date.

Tn pacticular, a severe but plausible downside scenario is considered by the Directoss in order to assess the likely
impact of multiple different adverse factors impacting the Group simulianeously, giving rise to a material
adverse impact on the Group’s profitabilily and liguidity during the going concern period. Further details can be
found in note 3 of the financial statements

3. Consideration of the controliable action that the Directors can take fo mitigate a severe but plausible
downside scenario

In response to dewnside risks the Group has a range of actions, within its controd, that it could deploy to mitigate
the impact. These inchude but are not limited 1o

e  Reduction in non-essential capital cxpenditure, including the capital expenditure on future growih projects

»  Adapting or pausing of services whetc no demand exists 1o reduce or balt losses at a particular facility and
better deploy rescurces

s Reduction in certain aveas of discretionary spend that would not have any short o medium term adverse
impact on the Group

In agpregate the inclusion of mitigation actions materially increases the level of liquidity and covenan{ headroom
further, versus the unmitigated secnavio

Having considered all of the above factors the Directors have concluded there is no material uncertainty on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern for the period from the date of the approval of these financial
statements to 31 Auvgust 2024,
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Aspris 1loldco Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Engagement with emplovees

The Directors recognise that the continued position of the Group in the specialist education, care and behavioural care
induslry depends on the quality and motivation of its employees. Well trained, engaged and quality employees are
erueigl for the Group te ensure that service users reccive the best quality care, The key quality performance indicators
the Group uses to measure engagement and (raining are: the employee opinion survey, employee sickness levels and
compliance with the Group e-learning programme. The Group has low levels of sickness and high levels of compliance
with training programmes. Whilst moniloring these performance indicators, the Group continucs to review its
remuneration system to ensure it is fair, transparent, flexible and provides individual recognition. Employees have 2
personal developiment plan that is monitored, assessed and modified during the annual appraisal process.

The Group recognises that good and effective employee communications ave particuiacly important to retaining and
motivating employees, and {hroughout the busiacss it js the Directors® policy to promole the understanding by all
employees of the Group®s business aims, purpose, performance and individual epportunities for personal and career
development. This is achieved through internal publicstions, presentetions on performance and a variety of other
approaches appropriate for a particular location. Employees are consulted on issues through our Active Collcague
Enpagement (FACE®) forunis. In all these areas, the Group continues te further invest in resource and 1T solutions in
order to deliver a positive experience for all our colleagues.

The Directors believe that it is important to recruit and retain capable and caving staff regardiess of their gender,
marital status, race or religion, 1t is the Group’s policy to give full and fair consideration to applications for
employment from people who are disabled, lo coniinue wherevor possible the employment of and o arrange
appropriate training for, employces who become dissbled and to provide cqual opportunities for the career
development, training and promotion of disabled employees.

Charitable Donations

During the period the Group made charitable donation of £50,000. Individual donations were as {olluws:

Charity . £

UNICEF — Ukraine appeal 50,000
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Aspris Holdco T.imited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Streamlined energy and carbon veporting

In April 2019, the Department for Business, Energy and Indusirial Strategy introduced a new reporting repulation
entitled the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting Framework (“SECR”), replacing various cther reporting
requirements. Organisations subject to SECR are required to include information relating ta their energy usage aud

carbon emissions.

The ensrgy used and emissions the period ended 31 August 2022 are as follows:

Emission type Total Caleulated
Volume Emissions

(lkWh) (Tonnes of

CQ%)

Scope 1 (direct) 13,814,587 2,954.9
Scope 2 (indirect) 5,020,739 970.9
Scope 3 (indirect) 26,758 26.8
Total 18,862,124 39526

Scope | Emissions (dirset) are Emissions from activitics owned or controlied by the Group, that release emissions
into the atmosphere, scope | emissions for Aspris Group include amongst other, combustion in owned boilers and

vehicles.

Scope 1 Emissians {direct) for the period ave as follows:

Luergy type Definition Total Calenlated

Volume Eunissions

(LkWh) (Tonnes of

- CO%)

Gas Emissions from combuystion of gas 6,407,987 1,169.7

Other Fuels Emissions from combustion of fuels {or stationary 7,153,714 1,532.3

machinery and engines

Transport Emissions from combustion of fuels for transport 252,886 2529
purposss . .

Tatal 13,814,587 2,954.9

Scope 2 Ernissions (indirect) are emissions released into the atmosphere associated with the Groups consumption of
purchased electricity, heat, and cooling. These are indirect cmissions that are a consequence of the Group’s

activities, but which occur at sources that the Group does nat own or control.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Streamlined energy and cavbon reporting (continued)

Scope 2 Emissions {indirect) for the period are as follows:

Energy type Definilion Total Cnleulated
Volume Emissions

(kwWhy) (Tonnes of

B CO%)

Electricity Emissions from purchased electricity 5,020,739 970.9
Total 5,020,739 9709

Scope 3 Emissions (indirect} arc emissions that are a consequence of the actions of the Group, which ocour at source
which are not classified as scope 2 emissions. Examples of Scope 3 emissions are business travel by means not

owned or controlied by the Group.

Scope 3 Emissions (indirect) for the period are sz follows:

Encrgy type Definition Total Calculated
Volume Emissions
{IkWh) (Tonnes of
_ CO%)
Employee-owned cars Bmissions fiom business travel in rentat cars or 26,798 26.8
employee-owned vehicles where the company is
responsible for purchasing fuel (mandatory)
Total 26,798 26.8
Inteasity Ratio
The Group monitors an Intensity ratio in the form of a comparison of emissions to ftuinover:
Tutensity measure Turnover Intensity
£m Ratio’
Tonnes CO% pet tolal £m turnover 179.2 22.06
Total 179.2 22.06
' {COPerTusnover £m

Quantification and reperting methodology

The Group has taken guidance from the UK Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines (March 2016}, the
GHG Reporting Protocol - Corporaie Standard, and from the UK Government GHG Conversion Factors for
Company Reporting document for calculating carbon emissions. Energy usage information (gas and electricity) has
been abtained directly from our energy suppliers and hatf-hourly (HH) data, where applicable, for the I supplies.
For supplies where there were nol compiete periods encrgy usage available, flal profile estimation techniques were
used to complete the periods consumption. 1ransporl mileage data was obtained from expense claims submitted by
the Group’s cars and grey fleel. CO% emissions were caleulrfed using the appropriate emission faciors 2022 from

the UK Governmen! GHG conversion information.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Sireanlined energy and carbon reporiin

Energy efficient action

Inn the past year the Geoup has undertaken various energy cfficiency works across the estate, including the upgrading
of AC systems, boilers and insulation. The Group have, at 2 number of sites, commenced conversion of Qil heating
syslems to more efficient LPG solutions. These focussed works are ongoing alonggide genetal refinbishments
undettaken including LED lighting and general cfficiencies.

The Group will continue our efforts through participation in Phase 3 of BSOS (Energy Saving Opportunitics Scheme)
to assist in the targeting and reduction of its carbon footprint through continued stractured investment in encrgy
efficiency programmes.

Ethical trading

The Group endeavours to purchase goods and services with the least envivonmental impact, Our efforts for waste
diversion from tandfill, recycling, collection, and segregalion have meant thet the Group have diveried 99% of trade
waste away from landfill. Aspris also recycled 35% of al! trade waste generated, and we remain committed to
increasing this percentage of recycling year on year, with a target of 50% by the end of 2023.

We continue to be supported in our efforts through the collection of recyelable materials, the collection and
conversion of cur waste cooking ofl ta diesel, and other initiatives.

Disclasure of infprmation to the auditor

Each Director has taken steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order 1o make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's auditer is aware of that information, The Directors
cenfirm that there is no relevant information that they know of and of which they know the auditor is unaware.

Appraved by the Board and signed on ils behalfby:

Trevor M Torring
Director

The Forge,

43 Church Street West,
Waking.

GU21 60T

21 March 2023
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Aspris Holdco Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
Opinian en the financial statemertts
In our opinion:

+  the financial statements give a brue and tair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s
affairs as at 31 August 2022 and of the Group’s loss for the periad then ended;

¢ the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted infernationsl
accounting standards;

s the Parent Company financial statements have been praperly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

+ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of 1he Comipanies Act 2006,

We have audited the financial statements of Aspris Holdco Limited (“the Pavent Company”} and its subsidiaries (*the
Group™) for the period ended 31 August 2022 which comprise the Consclidated Income Statement, Consolidated
Statemenl of Comprehensive Income, Consclidated Statement of Financial Position, Consofidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, Censolidated Statement of Cash
Flows, Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of signilicant accounting
policies, The financisl reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and UK
adopted international accounting standards, and as regards the Paven! Company financial statements, as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial stalements section of our repert. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide 4 basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the cthical requiremeins that are relevant

to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Bthical Standard, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate,

Based on the work we have performed, we have not idenfified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individuaily or collcctively, may cast significant doubt on the Group or Parent Company's ability to
confinue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months fromt when the financial statemenls are authorised

for issue.

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to golng concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report,
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Aspris Holdco Limited
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
(CONTINUED)
Orther information
The Directors are responsible for the other Information, The other information comprises the information included in
the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Qur opinion en the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otheiwise explicitly staled in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,
Our responsibility {s to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated, I we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether this gives rise 10 a material missiatement in the financial statements themselves. 1,
hased on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is & material misstatement of this other information, we
are required fo report that fact,
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Other Companics Act 2006 reporting

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

*» the information given in the Strategic report and the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

+ the Strategic report and the Directors’ repoil have been prepared in accordanee with applicable legal
requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and ils environment obtained
in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstaternents in the Strategic report or the Directors’ veport.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to reprert to you if, in our opinion:

«  adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, of returns adeguate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

s the Parent Company financial siatements are not in agreement with the zccounting records and retuins; or

+ certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

s we have not received all the information and explanations we require for cur audit.
Respaonsibilities of Directars
As explained more fully in the Stalement of Direcfors' Responsibilities, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal

control &s the Directors determine is necessary o gnabie the preparalion of financial staternents that are free from
material misstatement, whether due o fraud or error.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
(CONTINUED)

[n preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Parent Corapany’s
ability to continuc as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related (o going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless (e Ditectors efther tntend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or fo
crase operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s respousibitities for the audit of the financtal statements

Our objeclives are to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financlal statements as a whole are firee from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or eror, and to issuc an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high [evel of assurance, bu( is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
[SAs (UK) wilt always delect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatetents can avise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonsbly be expected to Influence (he
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Extent to which the audit was capable of detecting ivreguilarities, including fravd

liregularilies, including [raud, are instances of non-compliznce with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibilitics, cutlined above, (o detect malerial misstatements In respect of hrrcgularities, including
fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, inciuding fraud is detailed below:

We have identified and assessed the potentlal risks related lo irregularities, including fraud, by considering the
following:

o the nature of the industry, including the design of the Group’s remuneration policies;

o enquiries of management regarding; compliance with laws and reguiations; the detection and
response to the risk of fraud and any knowledge of actual, suspected or alleged fraud; and the
controls in place to mitipate risks related to fraud or non-compliance with laws and reguiations.

o oblaining an understanding of the legal and regulatory framewvork in which the Group cperates,
including employment law, and Health and Safety requirements,

o performing procedures to verify the existence of revenues, and consider the risks around the
fraudulent recognition of amounts,

We have responded to risks identified by performing procedures including the following:
o  enquiry of management concerning acluat and potential litigation and claims;

o reviewing the financial slatement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess
complience with relevant laws and regulations;

o performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected refationships which may
indicate risks of misstaternent due to fraud; and

o reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance identify any instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations.

We have also considered the risk of fraud through management override of controls by:

o sample testing the appropriateness of journal enlries and other adjustments; assessing whether the
judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluating
the busincss rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course
of business;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITER
(CONTINUED)

o discussing among (he engagement team how and where fraud might oceur in the financial slatements
and any potential indicators of fraud. As part of this discussion, we considered potential for fraud
in revenue recoguition, specifically in relation to revenue existence, as well as the petentiat for
management overtide of controls specifically in refation to the posting of journaf adjustments and
the inappropriate use of estimates.

¢ in addressing the risk for fraud in revenue recoguition, testing the appropriateness of the revenus
recognition policies and the application of these policies and perferming specific procedurcs over
the existence and cut-off of revenue; and

o discussing with management and those charged with governance whether they are aware of any
frauds, or non-compliance with lass and regulations, duting the period.

Our audit procedures were designed to respond to risks of material misstatement in the financial stafements,
recognising that the risk of not detecting a material misstaternent due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concenlment by, for example, forgery, misrepresentations or
through collusion. There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures performed and the further removed non-
compliance with laws and regulations is fiom the cvents and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less
likely we are to become aware of i1

A further description of our tesponsibilities is avaflable on the Financial Reporting Council’s website ar;
bttpsi/Avwny fre.org.ul/anditorsrespopsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of eur repoxt

This report is made solely to the Parent Company’s members, as & body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been wndertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company’s
members those matters e are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. 'to the fullest
extent permitted by baw, we do not accept or assume responsibilily to anyone other than the Pareat Company and the
Parent Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this repout, or for the opinions we have formed.

DocuSigned by:

Paud, ‘Eﬂwviuﬁfow

E10CCHCF40AB4CC

Paul Btherington BSc FCA. CF {Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behatf of BDXO LLP, Statulory Auditor
Reading, UK

22 March 2023

BDO LLP is a limited liability parinership tegistered in England and Wales (with registered number QC305127).
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Asgpris Holdeo Limited

Consolidated Income statement for the period ended 31 August 2022

Note 2022
£m
Revernue 4 179.2
Operating costs (156.1)
Exceptionat ilcms 10 (7.8)
Impairment loss 15 (19.7) :
Other losses ] {0.3) ‘
Operating loss m
Nel finance costs 9 (22.7)
Luoss before taxation jum_ W]_
Income tax i1 03
Loss attributable to the owners of the Gronp . AW

27
The notes on pages 34 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements.




Aspris Holdco Limited

Consslidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period to

31 August 2022
2022
£m
1055 for the petiod 27.1)
‘Lotal compreheasive income for the period _27.0
28

The notes on pages 34 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements.



Aspris Holdco Iimited
Registration Number: 13534635

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 August 2022

Note 2022
£m
Assels
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment i2 158.1
Right of use assets 13 156.4
Intangible assets 14 e 434
457.9
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 18 245
Cash and cash equivalent 19 . _E8a_
42,6
Tatal assefs 500.5
Current liabilities
Lease liabilities 13 (5.1)
Trade and other payables 24 (21.5)
Income {ax liability (0.9}
Deferred income 20 0 (288)
(56.3)
Net current liabilities (13.7)
Non-currend liabilities
Lease liabilities 13 (155.4)
Loans and borrowings 22 (159.6)
Provisions 23 (1.0)
Defarred tax liabilities 26 (36.2)
{352.2)
Nel assets 92.0
Share capital 21 84.6
Share premiumn 345
Accumulated losses (27.1)
92.0

Total equity

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

21 March 2023

Director
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the Period ended

August 2022
Share capital Share Retainedd  Total equity
Premium Earnings
T.oss for the period 27.1) (27.1y
Total comprehensive income 27.1) (27.13
New share capital subseribed - 7 84.6 345 - 119.1
_A31 August 2022 ] 84.6 34.5 (27.1) 92,0
30

The notes on pages 34 ta 73 form an integral part of these financial statements.



Aspris Holdeo Limited
Registration Number: 13534635

Company Statement of Financial Position as at 31 August 2022

Note 2022
£m
Assets
Nuon-current asscts
investinents in subsidiaries 16 114.1
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 18 0.2
Cash and cash equivalent 1w 0.7
—_ b3
Total assets 120.0
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 24 {0.9)
Net current assets/(linbilities) -
Net assets 1191
Share capital 21 84.6
Share premium 34.5
119.1

Total equity __

The Company has taken advantage of the exemplion conferred by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 from
presenting its own profit and loss account, The Company’s loss for the year was £19,000.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Trevor M Towringlo
Director

Divector

21 March 2023
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Company Statement of Changes in Equity for the Period ended Augunst 2022

Share eapital Share Retained Total equity
Preminm Larnings
Lass for the pericd B . _ - -
‘Fotal comprehensive income - -
New share capital subscribed o 846 345 - 1191
At 31 Aupust 2022 __ 84,6 34.5 - 1191
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Aspris Holdcoe Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Period ended 31 August 2022

Cash flows from operating nctivities
Loss for the period

Adjustnents for;

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation on right of use nssets

Impairment of goodwill

Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment
Finance income

Iinance costs

Share of [oss of equity accounied investees
Income tax

Working capifal adjustments
Increase in trade and othet receivables
Increase in trade and other payables
Increase in provisions

Decrease in deferred income

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid
Net cash flow from operating activitics

Cash flows firom investing activities

Interest veceived

Acquisitions of property plant and cquipment
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment
Advances of loans to joint ventures

Acquisition of subsidiaries - net of cash acquired

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares

Proceeds from external borrowing draw downs
Repayment of external borrowing

Repayment of {oans advanced from foriner pacent
Principal paid on lease liabilities

Interest paid an lease liabilities

Net ingrease in, and closing eash and cash equivalents

Note

—
MO o La O

16
17

17

13

19

2022
£im

(27.13

13.7
8.5
19.7
0.3
(0.1
22.8
0.5

{(113)

158.6
“@1.3)
90.1)

(4.8
{10.5)

119.7
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022 .

1. General information

The company is a private company limited by share capital, incorporated in England and Wales and domiciled in
United Kingdom, regisiration number 13534635, Aspris Holdeo Limited Group inciudes the Aspris Children's
Services Abu Dhabi Branch.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board on 17 March 2023
2. Accounting policies
Stalgment of compliatice

The Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and its interpretations adopted by the UK ("UK adoptcd IFRSs").

Summary of significant accounting policies and key estimates

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statemcents arc set out below. These
policies have been consistently applicd, unless otherwise staled.

Bagsls of preparation

The consclidated financial statements arc prepaved in accordance with UK adopted interaational accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the companies act 2006 as applicable to companies using IFRS.
The Company has elected to prepare its parent Company financial statements in accordance with UK. generally
accepted accounting principles (UK GAAP), including FRS 101

The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost aceounting rules.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemplion available under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and
elecled not to present its own Statement of Comprehensive Income in these financial statemeats.

Going concern

The Board reviews forecasts of the Group’s liquidity requirements based on a range of sceharios to ensure it has
sufficient cash to meet operational and finangial needs. These forecasts are underpinned by detailed and embedded
forecasting processes and procedures to provide granular visibility over both the near term and long-term liquidity
requirements of the Group, to inform the Directors® decision making on all key financial matters. The Directors
consider both short term and long-term forecasts for the business, ranging from rolling three-month daily liquidity
forecasting, annual budget and periodic intra year reforecasting processes, and ionger term 3 year long range plans
for the Group. Each of these projects the liquidity and covenant headroom for the Group.

‘The Group made a loss before tax of £27.4m for the period ended 31 August 2022, this loss in the current period
reflects the non-cash impairment of goodwill (see note 15) of £19.7m and exceptional of £7.8m, excluding these
iterns the group made u loss of £0, Lm and an operating profit of £23.1m. The Group is forecast to make an operating
profit during the going concern period. The Group generates sufficient cash to cover its liabilities and surplus
balances are held as cash reserves to invest in the Group and support the business in future petiods. At 31 August
2022 the Group had debt of £165.0m due to its external lenders and finance lease liabilities of £160.5m. No loans
were due to our shareholders.

As part of their considerations the Divectors review a range of different scenarios, including a severe but playsible
downside scenaric to assess the impact on both the liquidily and covenant headroom of the Group, scc note 3.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the Cemnpany ond its subsidiuiy undenakings
diasvn up @ 31 August 2022,

A subsidiary is an entity comrolled by the Company. Control is achigved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits fiom its actividies.

The resulls of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the income statement from the
effective date of acquisilion or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Where hecessary, adjusiments ate
made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by the
Group.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for business combinations that result in the acquisition of
subsfdiaries by the Group. Thie cosl of a business combination is measured ag the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly atiributable
to the business combination. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially al their fair values at the acquisition date. Any excess of the cost of the
business combingtion over the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the identillable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised is recorded as goodwill.

Inter-company transactions, balances and utirealised gains on transactions between the Company and its
subsidiaries, which are related patties, are eliminated in fuil.

Intra-group losses are also eliminated but may indicate an tmpairment that requires recognition in the consolidated
financial statements.

Changes in accounting policy
The following amendments are effective for the period beginning 28 July 2021:
Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Conlracts

None of the standards, interpretations and amendments cffective for the first time from 28 July 2021 have had a
material effect on the financial statements.

The following new standards, interpretations and amendments are nol yet effect:

Amendment to 1AS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
Amendments to IFRS 3 “Definition of a business”
[AS 16: PPE: Proceeds before intended use
IAS 37: Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract
Annual improvement cycle to IFRS (2018-2020 Cycle)
o IFRS 1: Subsidiary as a first time adopler
o IFRS9: fees in the *10 per cent’ test for derecognilion of financial iabilitics
o IFRS 16: Lease incentives amended example
+ 1AS 8 Definition of accounting estimates
+ IAS 1: Discloswre initiative —accounting policies
»  Amendments o IAS 12 “Deferred tax relating fo assets and liabilitics arising from a single transaciion”

* 9 *» 9

Nore of the standards, interpretations and amendments which ave offective for periods beginning afler 28 July 2021
and which have nol been adopted early, are expected to have a material effect on the {inancial statements,

35




Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
{continued)

Revenue Recognition
Recognifion

Revenue is recognised based upon the number of people per day to which we have provided a service, These volume
metrics are recorded and combined with the applicable fee rate per person per service, to devive the total revenue to
be recognised., There is limited judgemental input this process

Revenue is recognised as performance obligations are satisfied as control of services is transferred 1o the customer.
The Group has determined that most of its performance obligations are satistied over time as the cltent
simultaneously received and consumes the benefits provided by the Group as the education or care serviees are
rendered. In the circumstances, revenue is recognised at the amount which the Group has the right to invoice, where
that amount corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the Group’s performance completed to date.

The principles in IFRS are applicd to revenue recognition criteria using the following 5 step model:

1. Tdentify the contracts with the customer

2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract

3. Determine the ransaction price

4. Allocale the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
5. Recognise revenue when or as the eatity satlsfies its performance obligations

fee arrangements

Below are details of fee arrangements and how these are measured and recognised, for revenue from the provision of
serviees: )

Asptis delivers special education and cate serviees to its service users in line with contraclual agreements, which
clearly state the nature of the services to be provided over what time period. The main performance obligations in
contracts consist of delivery of services {o service users, For ail contracts the stage of completion and defivery of
performance cobligations are measured al the balance sheet date by reference 1o sesvices delivered to service users at
that date.

Transaction price

‘o caleulate the transaction price of contracts rates are applied daily or by specific service provided to service users
as detailed in contractual agreements.

Paymeni terms

Payment terms range from payment in advance of services delivered to within a range of specified days of receipt of
service or involce, dependant on the specific circumstances and needs of the service users.

Tax

The tax expease for the period comprises curcent tax, Tax Is recogtiised in profit or loss, except thet a change
attributable to an item of income or expense recagnised as other comprehensive income is also recognised directly in
other comprehensive income.

The current income tax charge is caiculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the repotting date in the countries where the Group operales and generates taxable income.
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Aspris Holdeo 1.imited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment ia stated in the slaleinent of Onanclal position at cost, fess any subsequent
accumulated deprecialion and subscquent accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant «nd equipment includes directly altributable incremental costs incurred in their
acquisition and instaliation,

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged so as 10 write off the cost of asscts, other than land and properties under construction over
their estimated useful [ives, as follows:

Assef class - Years depreciated over

Freehold buildings 50 years

Leasehold buildings The lease term

Fixtures and fittings 3 to 16 years

Motor vehicles ] The short of the lease tern or 4 years

Intangible assets

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an entity represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the entity recoghised at
the dalc of acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognised as an assct at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment fosses, Goodwill {s held in the currency of the acquired entity and revalucd to the
closing rate at each reporting period date.

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation but is tesied for impaimment on at least an annual basis, The impairment test
compares the recoverable value of a cash generating unit (*CG1"), the value in use of that CGU and the carrying
vaiue of the intangible asset in accordance with IAS36, This assessment factors in the latest developments within
each CGU, including amongst other factors, current trading, capacity aad staffing constraints to assess an estimation
of the future cashflows and the determination of a discounat rate in order o calcuiate the present value of those cash
flows,

Negative goodwill arising on an acquisition is recognised directly in the income statement. On disposal of a
subsidiary or a jointly controlied entity, the attributable amount of goodwill §s included in the determination of the
profit or loss recognised in the income statement on disposal.

Scparately acquired trademarks and ficences are shown at historical cost.

Trademarks, icences {including software) and customer-related intangible assets acgnired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
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Aspris Holdco I.imited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)
Amortisation

Amortisation is provided on intangible assets sv as to write off the cost, less any estimated restdual value, over their
sxpected useful economic life as follows:

Asset class Years amortised over
Customer conttacts ) 61 17 yeais _

The amortisation periods ave based on expected customner churt rates and, where relevant, the length of (ixed-term
customer conlracts

Yaluation of investments

Investments in subsidiaries held by the company are measured at cosi less any accumulated impairment in the
company’s statement of financial position.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and call deposits, and other shori-term highiy liquid investments
that are readily converiible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from cuystomers for services pertorned in the ordinary course of business. If
collection is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if Jonger), they are
classified as cutrent assets, If not, they are presented as non-current assels.

Trade receivables are recogniscd initially at the transaction price. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairmeni. A provision for the impairment of trade
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the ariginal terms of the receivables.

Trade payables

Trade payables ave obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current Habilities If payment Is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current [abilities,

Trade payables are recognised initially at the ransaction price and subsequently measured at amorlised cost using
the effective interest method.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(coniinted)

Borroewings

All borrowings are initially recorded at the fair value which is often the amount received, net of transaction costs.
Rorrmwvings ave: sithsernently carried a1 amortised cost, with the difference betwveen he proceeds, net of transaction
costs, and the amount due on redemption being recognised as a charge to the income statement over the perviod of the
relevant borrowing,

Interest expense is recopnised on the basis of the effective interest method and is included in finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer setilement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reparting date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounés of assets and liebilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities ave generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferced tax assets are
gencrally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which these deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities ate not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition {other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilitics in a {ransaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recopgnised if the temporary difference arises from (he inltial recognition
of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilifies are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, and intercsts in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future, Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which fo utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they sre expecied to reverse in the foresecable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will he available to allow afl or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Defetred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expecled to apply in the peried in which the
lability is sctiled or the assot realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period,

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the

manner in which the Group expects, at the ead of the reporting period, to recover or settle the cartying amount of its
assets and liabilities.
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Aspris [Toldeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Exceptional ifemns

liems that are both malerial and non- reoccurring and whose significance is sufficient to warrant separate disclosure
and identification within the consolidated financial information are referred to as exceptional ilems. ltems Lhat may
glive rise to classification as exceptienal include but are note limited to, significant and material reorganisation and
restracturing programmes, re-financing and acquisition costs, Further details of exceptional items can be found in
note 0.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {lege] or conslructive) as a result of' a past event,
it is probable that the Group wilt be required o settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation,

Provisions ate measured at the Directors® best estimate of the expenditure required 1o settle the obligation at the
reporting date and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

Leases
Definition

A lease is a contract, or a patt of a contract, that conveys the right to use an assct or a physically distinct patt of an
asset (“the underlying assct”) for a perfod of time in exchange for consideration. Further, the contract must convey
the right to the Group to control the asset or a physically distinct portion thereof. A contract is deemed to convey the
right to control the underlying asset if, throughout the period of use, the Group has the right to:

s Obtain substantially all the economic benefits from the use of the underlying asset, and;
e Direct the use of the underlying asset (c.g. direct how and for what purposc the asset is used)

Initial recognition and measurement

The Group initiaily recogniscs a lcase liability for the obligation to make lease payments and a right-of-use asset for
the righi to use the underlying asset for the lease term.

The lease liabiiity is measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the fease term, with the
discount rate determined by reference to the rate inherent in the lease unless (as is Lypically the case) this is net
readily determinable, in which ¢ase the Group’s incremental borrowing rate on commencement of the lease is used.
The lease payments include fixed payments, purchase aptions at exercise price (where payment is reasonably
cerlain), expected amount of residual value guarantees, termination option penaltics (where payment is considered
regsongbly certain) and vaviable lease payments that depend on an index or rate. In such cases, the initial
measurement of the [ease linbility assumes the variable element will remain unchanged throughout the lease term,
Other variable lease payments are expensed in the period to which they relate.

The right-of-use asset is Initially measured at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted for lease prepayments, lease
incentives received, the Group’s initial direct costs {¢.g. commissions) and an estimate of restoration, removal and
dismantling costs.

Subsequent meastrement

After the comimencement date, the Group measures the lease liability hy:

(a) Increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability;

(b} Reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and

(¢) Re-measuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in
substance fixed lease payments or on the occurrence of other specific events.
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Aspris Holdco Limiled

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Leases (continued)

intercst on the lease liahility in each period during the lease term is the amount that produces & constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability. Interest charges are presented separately as non-operating
costs, included in finance cost, in the income statement, unless the costs ave included in the carrying amount of
another asset applying other applicable standards.

Vuriable lease paymenis not included in the measurement of the fease liability, are included in operating expenses in
the period in which the event or condition that triggers them arises.

‘T'he related right-of-use asset is accounted for using the Cost model in TAS 16 and depreclated and charged in
accordance with the depreciation requirements of JAS 16 Property, Plaat and Equipment as disclosed in the
accounting policy for Propetty, plant and cquipment. Adjustments are made to the canying value of the right of use
assct where the lease lability is re-measured in accordance with the above. Right of use assets are tested for
impairment i accordance wwith TAS 36 Impairment of assets as disclosed in the accounting policy in impairment,

Lease modifications

If g lease is modified, the modified contract is evaluated 1o determine whether il is or contains a lease. 1f a lease
continues to exist, the lease modification will resulit in either a separate [case or a change in the accounting for the
existing lease.

The modification is accounted for as a separatc {ease if both:

{a) The modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right o use one or more underlying assets; and
() The consideration for the lease increases by an amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contracl.

If both of these conditions are met, the lease modification results in two separate leases, the unmodified original
lease and a separate lease, The Group then accounts for these in line with the accounting policy for new leases,

[f either of the conditions are not met, the modified lease is not accounted for as a separate leasc and the
consideration is allocaied to the contract and the lease liability is re-measured using the lease term of the modified
lease and the discount rate as determined at the effective date of the modification.

For a modification that fully or parlially decreases the scope of the lease (e.g. reduces the square footage of leased
space), IFRS 16 requires a fessee fo decreaso the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect partial or fuil
termination of the lease. Any difference between those adjusiments is recognised in profit or loss at the effective
dale of the modification,

For all other lease modifications which are not accounted for as a separate lease, IFRS 16 requires the lessee to
recognise the amount of the resmeasurement of the lease Liability as an adjustinent o the corresponding right-of-use
asset without effecting profit or loss.

Short term and low valtie leases

The Group has made an accounting policy election, by class of underlying asset, not to recognise lcase assets and
lease liabilities for lcases with a lease term of 12 months or {ess (i.c. short-term leases).

The Group has made an accounting policy election on a lease-by-lease basis, nol to recognise lease assels on leases
for which the underlying assct is of low value.

Lease paynients on short term and low value leases are accounted for on a steaight line bases over the term of the
lease or other systematic basis if considered more appropriale. Short term and low value lease payments are included
in operaling expenses ip the income statement.
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Aspris Holdeo I.imited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as cquity, Equity instruments are measured at the fair value of the cash or other
resources received or receivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the equity instruments. If payment is deferred and
the time value of money is material, the initial measurement is on a prescal value basis.

Defined contribution pension obligatinn

A defined contyibution plan is a peasion plan under which fixed contributions are paid into a separate entity and has
no legal or consiructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods,

Tinancial instruments
Initial recognition

Financial assets and financial [iabilitics comprise all assets and liabiiities reflected in the stutement of financial
pesition, excluding property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, deferred tax assets, prepayments and deferred
tax liabilities.

The Group recognises financial assets and financial liabilities in the statement of financial position when, and only
when, the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assels are initially recognised at fair value. Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value,
representing the proceeds received net of premiums, discounts and transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the financial liability.

Purchases or sales of a financial assets under a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within the time
frame established generally by regulation or convention in the marketpiace concerned are defined as a regular way
purchase or sale. All regular way purchases and sales of financizal assets and financial liabilitics classified as fair
value through prefit or loss (“FVTPL”) are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the financial assets or financial liabilitics. All regular way purchases and sales of other financial
assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the settlement date, 1.e. the date on which the asset or liability is
reccived from or delivered to the counterparty. Regular way purchases ar sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery within the time frame generally established by reguiation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent to initial measurement, financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at sither amortised cost or
fair value.

Classification and measurement

Financial instruments are classified at inception into one of the following categories, which then determine the
subseguent measurement methodotogy: -

Financial assets are classified into one of the following catepories;-
+ financial assets at amortised cost;
* financial asseis at fair value through the profit or loss (FVTPL); or
Financial liabilities ave classified into one of the following two categories: -
+ financial liabilities at amortised cost; or
+ financial liabilities at fair value through the profit or loss (FVTPL).
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Kinancial Statements for the period ended 31 Augus( 2022
{continned)

Financial instvuments {confinued)

The classificatlon and the hasis for measurcment are subject to the Group’s business model for managing the
finzncial assets and the contractual cash {low characteristics of the {inancial assets, as detailed beloay;-

Financial assefs af amoriised cost

A financial asset [s measyred at amortised cost if it meets bath of the following conditions and is not designated as al
FVTPL:

s the assels are held within a business mode! whose objective is 1o hold assets in order ta collect contractual
cash [ows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solcly
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

If either of the above two criteria is not met, the financial assely are classified and measured at fair value through the
profit or loss (FYTPL).

If a financial asset meets the amortised cost criteria, the Group may choose to designate the financial asset at
FVTPL, Such an election is irrevocable and applicable only if the FVTPL classification significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition ineonsistency.

Financial assets at fair value through the prafil or loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets not otherwise classified above are classified and measured as FVTPL,

Financial Habilities at amortised cosi
All financial liabilities, ather than those classified as financial liabilities at FYTPL, are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method.

Financial fiabilities af fair valie through the profit or loss

Financial liabifities not measured at amortised cost are classified and measured at TVTPL. This classification includes
derivative liabilities.

Derecognition

Financial assels
The Group derecognises a financial asset when;

s the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financiel asset expire,

e it mansfers (he right to receive {he contractual cash flows in a transaction ir which substantially alf of the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assel are transferved; or

o the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does
not relain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the sum of the
consideration received i3 recognised as a gain or Joss in the profit or loss.

Any cumulative gain or ioss recognised in OCI in respect of equity investment securities designated as FVTOCI is
not recognised in profit or loss an derecognition of such securities, Any interest iis transferred financial assets that
qualify for derecognition that is created or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate assef or liability.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes (o the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
{continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

The Group enlers into transactions whereby it transfexs assels recognised on its statement of financial position, but
retains either all or substantially all of risks and rewards of the fransferred assets or a portion of them. In such cases,
the transferved assets are not derecognised.

When the Group derecognises transferred financial assets in their entirety, but has continuing invelverment in them
then the enlily should disclose for each type of continuing involvement af the reporting date:

(2) The carrying amount of the assets and labilitics that are recognised in the enlify’s statermnent of
financial position and represent the entity’s continuing involvement in the derecognised financial
assets, and the fine items in which those assels and liabilities are recognised.,

(b) The fair value of the assets and liabilities that represent the entity’s continuing invelvement in the
derecognised financial asscts;

(c) The amount that best represents the entity®s maximum exposure to loss from its continuing
involvement in the derecognised financial assets, and how the maximum exposure to loss is
determined

() The undiscounted cash outflows that would or may be required o repurchase the derecognised

financial assets or other amaunis payable to the transieree for the transferred assets

Finemeial Hiabilities
The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled, or expire,

Impairment of financial assets

Measurement of Ixpected Credit Losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on financial instruriients that are not
measured at FVTPL, namely trade and other receivables.

Provisions for credit-impairment are recognised in the statement of income and are reflected in accumulated
provision balances against each relevant firancial instruments balance.

Evidence that {he financial asset is credit-impaired include the following;

* Significant financial difficulties of the borrower or issuer;

* A breach of contract such as default or past due event;

»  The restructuring of the loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwlse,

» Itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation; or

+  There is other observable data relating to a group of asscts such as adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers or issuers in the Group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaulis in the Group.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach, which requires expected lifetime losses (o be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables,

Trade receivables are not subject to material or significant credit losses. Credit risk is not considered to be significant
given that over 90% of revenue is derived from publicly funded entities.
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Fiuancial instraments {continued)

Financial instruments — Risk management

The Group is exposed {o finuncial risks in the form of credit, interest and liquidity risks which arise in {he normal
course of business. The primary financial visks that the Group is oxposed to aic noted below, for further delail on these
financial risks please see note 27,

The principal financial instruments used by the Group, from which financial instrurnent risk arises, are as follows:

¢ Trade receivablos
¢ Cash deposits
*  Senior and revolving credii facilities containing a variable element linked to Sterling Overnight Index

Average
Capital Manngement

The Group’s objective when managing its capital is to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern whilst maximising returns for stakcholders through the optimisation of debt and equity please see note
27 for the Group’s capital structure.
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3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of certain financial assets, Habilities, income and expenses.

‘The use of estimates and assumplions is principaily limited to the determination of provisions for impairment and
the valuation of financial instruments as explained in more detail below:

Provisions for impairment

In determining impairment of finaneial assets, judgement is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash fiovws as well as an assessment of whether the credit tisk on the financial asset has increascd significantly
since initial recognition and incorporation of forward-looking information in the measurement of ECL.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Where the fair value of financial assets aud liabilities cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined
using a vaviety of valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical models. The input 1o these models is
derived from observable markets where available, but where this is not feasible, a depree of judgement is required ju
determining assumptions used in the models. Changes in assumptions used in the models could affect the reported
fair value of financial assets and liabilities.

Going Concern

The Board reviews forecasts of the Group’s liquidity requirements based on a range of scenarios to ¢nsurc it has
sufficient cash iv meet operational and financial needs. These forecasts are underpinned by detailed and embedded
forecasting processes and procedures to provide granular visibility over both the near term and long term liquidity
requirements of the Group, to inform the Directors decision making on all key financial matters. The Directors
consider both short terra and long term forecasts for the busincss, ranging from rolling three month daily liquidity
forecasting, annual budget and periodic intra year reforecasting processes, and longer term 3 vear long range plans
for the Group. Each of these projects the liquidity and covenant headroom for the Group.

There are necessary estimates and judgements in the divectors’ assessment of going concern these are considered in
detail in the strategic report.

In asscssing the potential impact of a range of risk factors on the business the Directors have considered the likely
impact on the Group of & range of risks specific to the relevant business sector, as well as the conipound impact of
risk factors in the broader macro environment that have evolved since the balance sheet date.

[n particular, a severe but plausible downside scenario is considered by the Directors in order to assess the likely
impact of multiple different adverse factors impacting the Group simuftancously, giving rise to a material adverse
impact on the Group’s profitability and liquidity during the going concern period. Specifically, the sovere but
plausible downside scenario assumes:

* Reduction in occupancy levels from base forecasts of an aggrepate of approximately 2% for the going
concern period.

»  Costinflation:

o Wage inflation - additional site-wide wage inflation of 1.0% beyond the Group’s planned wage
increases (which already reflect announced National Living Wage, Teacher’s Pay Scale, and
other internal increases)

o Non-Wagc inflation - additional 1.0% cost inflation assumed bevond the Group’s base case.
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Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation (continued)

« Fee Infigtion - over and above the cost impacts the scenario considers a material shorifall in the
proportion of fee inercases that can be successfully achieved.

+ inflerest rate increases — assumes a marked and sustained increase in interest raies, ant therefore the cash
fiows required (o service the Group’s debt, The scenario factors in Bank uf England Base rates exceeding
5% by May 2023 and holding at this level for the remaining going concern period.

We do not consider that COVIN-19 will have a material impact on the cashflows of the Group in the going concern
peried.

The revenue and cost impact of such a scenario would have a major negative impact on the Group’s profitability for
the going concern peviod. With operafing profit being adversely impacted by approximately 30% in the period.
Furthermore, in adopting a prudent approach, the Directors have considered this scenario before relevant mitigating
actions that the business could implement to limit the adverse impact. Before the inclusion of such mitigations the
Greoup continues to forecast sufficient liquidity and financial covenaut headroom,

Business Combinations

The Group underlook three business combinations during the period (note 17). In accordance with IFRS, the
purchase method of accounting has been used. The Directors determine and allocate the purchase price of acquired
businesses at the date of the business combination, The purchase method requires significant estimates and
judgments.

While THrectots use their best estimates end assumptions as part of the purchase price allocation process to
aceurately value assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition, estimates and assumptions arc
inherently unceriain and subject to refinement, Examples of critical estimales in valuing certain assets we have
acquired include;

» future expected cashflows arising from assels and liabilities,
+ the fair valuc of intangible and tangible assets, and
s discount rates,

Lseful Economic life of intangible assets

The Directors have determined the useful economic life of certain intangible assets acquired as part of business
combination. The emortisation periods are based on expected customer churn rates and, where relevant, the lenglh of
fixed-term customer contracts.

Right of uge ussets and liabikities

The Group leases a number of properties in the jurisdictions in shich it operales, recognised in aceordance with
IFRS16 (note 13).

In caloulating the asset/fiability atlached to several of the lease agreements the Group has required use of an
Incremental Borrowing Rate (“IBR”). The IBR has considercd the risk-fiee rate attributable Lo the currency, location
and lease term of each property, adjusted to reflect the interest rates the Group would be able to achieve based upon
its existing financing arrangements.
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Critical accounting judgentents and key sources of estimation (continued)

The Directors have applied judgement fo determine the lease term for contracts that include a renewal or break
option, Extension options and break clauses are Included in a number of the Group's lease apreements to maximise
the flexibility in managing operational assets. In determining the lease term, the Directors have considered all facts,
circumstances and the exercise dates of such clauses. Extension options and break clauses are only reflected in the
icase term if there is reasonably certainly they will be exercised.

Impairment of goadwill and intangible fixed assels

The Directors must assess whether intangible assets have been impaired during the period. Factors taken inte
consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic viability and expected future financial performance
of the asset and where it is a component of a larger cash generating unit, the viability, expected future performance
of thal unit using a discounted cashflow model as at the period end and the assessed fair value of each cash
generating unit. The key estimates and assumptions that feature in the impairment test is the selection of pre«tax
discount rate relative to the specific risks of the cash-generating unit and the preparation of pre-tax cash flows using
director approved forecasts with growth rates that represent the Divectors’ best estimates. (note 15)
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4. Revenue

The analysis of the Group’s revenue for the period is as follows:

2022
£m
Turmover 178.6
Other revenue . 0.6
) 179.2
The analysis of the revenue by geographic region is as follows:
2022
Em
UK based divisions 176.5
Middle East based divisions 2.7
1792
5. Staff costs
The agpregate payrell costs (including directors’ remuneration) were as follows:
2622
£m
Wagcs and salaries 91.4
Social securily costs 8.0
Pension costs, defined contibution scheme 4.5
103.9

The averape number of persons emplayed by the Group (ineluding the Direclors) during the period, analysed by
category was as follows:

2022

No.

Site and operational 2,987
Administration and suppen 174
3,161
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6. Operating loss

Arrived at afier charging/(crediling)
2022
£m
Depreciation expense 8.7
Depreciation on right of use asscts 8.5
Amortisation expense 5.0
Expensc on short tenn leases 0.9

7. Auditors’ remuneration

Audit fees of £0.5m were incuired by the Group during the period, all fecs relate to the audit of the Group. There
were no lees incurred related to non-audit services.

8.  Other gains and losses

The Group’s ather galns or losses for the period are as follows;

2022
£m
_ Loss on disposal of property plant snd equipment ) 0.3
9, Finance income and costs
2022
£m
Finance income
Interest on bank deposits Q.1
0.1
Finance costs
Interest on external berrowings 12,0
Interest on lease liabilities 10.8
21.8
MNet finance costs ) 22,7
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10, Exceptional items

2022

£m

Acquisition costs related to business combinations 5.8
Aspris formation and reorganisation costs 1.3
Other {ransaction costs and charitable donations 0.7
7.8

Acquisition costs on business combinations refate to the acquisition of Aspris Children's Services Limited (£2.6m)
from the Priory Group, the acquisition of SC Topco Limited (£3.1m), and the acquisition of Aspris (Arden) Limited

(£4.1m).

Aspris formation and reorganisation custs relate to other expenses arising on the formation of the Aspris business as

standalone from the Priovy Group and include marketing-related expenses associated with the new Aspris brand,

Reorpanisation costs primarily relate to the revision {o redundancy costs associated with cxit of certain customer

contracts and the impiementation of revised management organisational structures in the Group.

Other {ransaction costs relate to the Group's assessiment, and execution, of other corporate and property related

transactions.

The Gronp elected 10 make a one-off contribution fo UNTCEF's Ukraine appeal during the period.

11, ‘Taxation

Tax recognised in the income statement

2022
Current tax £m
Curreni tax on taxable income for the period 13
Deferred tax (note 26)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (1.6)
Tax eredited in the period . (0.3)

The reasons for the difference between the actual tax charge for the year and (he siendard rate of corporation tax
applied to the losses for the year ave as fotlows:-

2022
£m
Loss for the year 14
Tax using the company's tax rate 19% 5.2)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 3.3
Tax rate changes o4
Total tax credited in the period (0.3}
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Taxation (continued)

As aresult of the Finance Bill 2021 ihe rates of income tax are expected to increase from 19% to 25% for the period
beginning April 2023.

Tax liabilities are recognised when, despite the Group's belicf that its tax refurn positions are supportable, the
Directors believe it is more likely than not that a taxation authovily would accept its fling position.

The Direciors betieve that its accruals for tax liabilitics are adequate for all open audit years based on its assessment
of many factors including past experience and iaterpretations of tax law.

Ne material uncertain tax positions exist as at 31 August 2022. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions

and may involve a series of complex judgements about future events, To the extent that the final tax putcome of
these matiers is different than the determination is made,

12. Property plant and equipment

Graup
Furniture, Properties
Land and fittings and Motor under
buildings equipnient vehicles  construction Total
£m £m £1 £m £m
Cost or valuation
Additions 23 6.5 0.1 3.2 iz2.1
Acquired through business
combinations 122.4 29.6 0.6 33 155.9
Disposals (1.0} 0.5 - (0.2) {1.7)
Transfers 0.6 0.3 . - (0.9) -
At 31 August 2022 124.3 359 0.7 5.4 166.3
Depreciation
Charge for the period 1.9 6.7 0.1 " 87
Eliminated on disposal 02) {0.3) - - (0.5)
At 31 August 2022 . 1.7 6.4 0.1 - 82
Carrying amount
At 3] Aupust 2022 122.6 255 0.6 5.4 158.1

Under the terms of the Group’s external borrowings there is a fixed charge, in favour of the external lenders, over ail
properly acgaired for a consideration of over £0.75m. Please refer to note 22 for further information on the Group’s
external borrowings.
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13. Right of usc assets and linbilitics

Group

Asscts

Property Motor vehicles ‘Total
£m £ £m

Cost or valuation
Acquired through busincss 156.8 24 153.2
combinations
Additions 30 0.5 3.5
Modifications 83 - 8.3
Disposals (0.1) (0.1} (0.2)
At 3] August 2022 162.0 2.8 164.8
Drepreciation
Charge for the period 73 12 8.5
Eliminated on disposal - (0.1) 0.1
At 3} Avugust 2022 7.3 1.1 8.4
Carrying amount
At 31 Aupgust 2022 154.7 1.7 156.4
Liubilities

Property Motor vehicles Total

£m £m £m

Acquired through business combinations 151.0 24 153.4
Addilions 3.0 0.5 3.5
Modifications 8.3 - 8.3
Disposais - - B
Interest 10.2 03 10.5
I.ease payments (14.0) (1.3) (15.3)
Foreign Exchange movements 0.1 - 0.1
At 3! Aupust 2022 158.6 1.9 160.5
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Right of usc assets and liabilities (continued)
Nature of feasing activitics

The Group leases a number of properties in the jurisdictions in which it operates, Some of these leases provide for
payments to increase each year by inflation or index rate movements, The Group has options to purchase or extend
the leases of certain propertiss. As the excrcising of such options Is not deemed to be reasonably certain, such
renewal options are not taken into account when delermining the right of use assets and liabilities. I.eases of vehicles
comprise only fixed payments over the lease term.

Lease liabilities are due as follows:

Maturity analysis £m
Year | 15.5
Year2 151
Year3 143
Year 4 13.9
Year 5 13.7
Onwards 2313
_ 3038

Less: unearned interest (143.3)

160.3

Analysed as:

Non-Current 1554
Current 5.1
160.5

Amounts recognised in profit and Toss

An amount of £0.9m has been vecognised in profit and foss in respect of properiy leases that expired and were ot
rencwed, and for rolling lease agreements. Cash payments in respect of these leases amounted to £0.9m.

At 31 August 2022, the Group had o commitments under these agreements in excess of s tivo-month notice period.
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14. Intangible assets
Group
Contractnal
Goodwill customer
(Note 15) velatiomships Total
£m £m £m
Cost or valuation
Acquired through business combinations _ 693 ) 98.8 168.1
At 31 August 2022 69.3 98.8 168.1
Awortisation
Amortisation charge - 5.0 5.0
Tmpairment (note 15) 9y - 19,7
At 31 August 2022 19.7 5.0 247
Carrying amount
At 31 August 2022 L 49.6 93.8 143.4

All Intangible Fixed Asscts (“TFAs™) were identified on Purchase Price Allocation exercises (“PPA™ exercises
cairied out on behall of management by an independent expert, at bwo points:

1. Acquisition of Priory Education Services Limited (*PESL” — subscquently rename Aspris Children’s
Services Limited) by Aspris Holdeo Limited on 31 August 2021

2. Acquisition of 8C Topco Limited by Aspris Children’s Services Limited on 28 January 2622

3. Acquisition of Hollyblue Healthcare (Arden} Limited, latlerly renamed Aspris (Avden) Limited

All TFAs have been amorntised in line with useful economic lives determined by management at each relevant
acyuisition date.

In accordance with accounting standards, the Group undettakes en annual review of Goodwill and where other IFAs
where there are indicators of impairment.
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15, Goodwill and impairment

Goodwill represents Lhe excess of the consideration over the fair value of the net asscts acquired on the purchase of
the subsidiary companies, In accordance with IFRS, this balance is not amortised and is subject to annual impairment
reviews. Goodwill has been allocated to each cash-generating unit (“CGU™) based on Purchase price Allocation
(“PPA™) exercises:

1. Acquisition of Priory Education Services Limited ("PESL” — subsequently renaimed Aspris Children’s
Services Limited) by Aspris [oldco Limited on 3F Augusl 2021

2. Acquisition of 8C Topco Limited by Aspris Children’s Services Limited on 28 January 2022

3. Acquisition of Hollyblue Healthcare (Arden) Limited, latterly renamed Aspris (Arden) Limited

ACSL Sand-  Arden Total

Group castle
Group
£m £m £m £m
Goodwill recognised during the period 21.0 47.7 0.6 69.3
Impairment recognised during the period - 4197 - (1en
Goodwill 21,0 28.0 0.6 49.6

In accordance with accounting standards, the Group undertakes an annual review of Goodwill,

In order to determine it there has been any impairment of Goodwill, management prepared calculations of the
recoverable amount for cach CGL). For both ACSL Group and the Sandeastle Care Group the recoverable value is
determnined by the forecast present value of future cash flows of the CGU based on 3-year projections endieg in a
terminal growth rate agsumption. Forecasts are based on the assumptions set out below:

ey Assumptions ACSL Group Sandeastle Care
Discount Ratc 11.0% 10.3%
Terminal Growth Rate 2.0% 1.0%
Ovperating Margin 10.3% 20.6%

ACSL Group

Since the date of acquisition, the ACSL, Group has maintained performance in line with the budgeted fargets set for
the business. Operaticnal challenges, particularly regarding constraints on the avaitability of staff have been
effectively managed, without a materlal adverse impact on ACSL’s profitability for the peried.

Forecast for FY23 is based on budget prepared by management and approved by the Board, with appropriate
adjustments for trading at 31 August 2022. Operating profit is forecast to increase at 2% CAGR befween FY24 and
FY27. Replacement capex to maintain the estate has alse been assumed, on par with FY23 budgeted levels.

Regarding the Group’s acquisition of 100% of the share capital of ACSL Group on 31 August 2021 the Group assessed
the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired to be £41.2m, compared to the total consideration of £62.2m, giving
rise o £21.0m intangible goodwill being recognised by the Group. As at 31 August 2022 Management assessed the
recoverable amount for ACSL Group to be £241.1m, £19.5m greater than the cairying value, and thus no itmpairment
to the Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the period.
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Goodwill and impairment (continued)

Sandcastle Care Group

Since the date of acquisition, the Sandeastie Car¢ busincss has maintained a high quality rating performance of over
90% posl-acquisition, bul the business has been impacted by operationul challenges that have reduced both its
available capacity and ulilisation, Whilst aspects of these challenges are not thought to be permunent, they have
impacted the overall agsessment of the present value of future cashflows from the business, These challenges inchude
staffing constraints that have led to reduced total occupancy and an adverse impact on operating margins compared o
the budgeted targets for the business,

Forecast for FY23 s based on the budget prepared by management and approved by the Board, with appropriate
adjusiments for trading at 31 August 2022, Operating profit is forecast to increase at 1% CAGR between FY24 and
['Y27. Replacement capex lo maintain the esiate has also been assumed, on par with FY23 budgeted levels.

Regarding the Group’s acquisition of 100% of the share capital of SC TopCo Limited on 28 January 2022 the Group
assessed the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired to be £14.0m, compared 1o the fotal consideration of £61.7m,
giving rise to £47.7m intangiblie goodwill being recognised by the Group,

Management assessed the recoverable amount for Sandcastle Care Group to be £77.6m, £19.7m {ower than the
carrying value of the CGU on a comparable basis at balance sheet date, and as such have impaired the goodwill
associated with the CGU by the shortfall in carrying value versus the recoverablé amount.

Impairment sensitivities for ACSL Group and Sandcastle Care Group

If any one of the following assumptions were amended by 1 perceniage point, the impaci on the impairment value
would be as follows:

Scnsitlvities

Aspris

Sandcastle Care

Discount Rate {1% increase)

Reduction to cartying value
from £241.1m to £221.2m

Reduction te carrying value
from £77.6m to £71.6m

Terminal Growih Rate (1% redui:ﬁon)

Reduction to carrying value
fion £241.1m to £220./m

Reduction 1o carrying value
from £77.6m to £71.5m

Operating Margin (1% reduction beyond FY27)

Reduction fo carrying value
from £241.1m to £223.0m

Reduction to carrying value
from £77.6m to £74.8m

Aspris (Arden) Limited

The assets held by Aspris (Arden) Limited consist of land and buildings, thesc were at fair vaiue on acquisition,
there are no subsequent indicators of impairment to the assels of Aspris (Arden) Limited. Since the acquisition of
Arden the business has been performing in line with expectations, and thus no impaiment to the Goodwill arising

o acquisition is required in the peried.
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16. Investinents - Group Subsidiaries

Deetails of the group subsidiaries as at 31 August 2022 arc as follows:

Name of subsidiary

Aspris Midco Limited
Aspris Bideo Limited

Aspris Children’s Services Limited

Coxlease School Limited

Castlecare Group Limited

Progress Care and Education Limited

Speciality Care Limited

Strathimore Coflege Limited

Aspris (Thetford 1) Limited

Aspris New Education Servives Limited
Castlecare Holdings limited

Quaniom Care UK Limited

Speciality Care {Rest Homes) Limited
Speciality Care (Medicare) Limited
Specialised Courses Offering Purposcful

Education Limited

Aspris (Thetford 2) Limited
Dunhall Property Limited
Castle Homes Care Limited

Castlecare Cymru Limited

Castle Homes Limited

Ratheare Bstates Limited

Castlecare Education Limited

{continued)

Priucipal activity

Holding company
Holding company

Specialist education services

Non trading

Nen trading
Children’s homes
Holding comparny
Care delivery
Non trading
Education

Non trading
Children’s care homes
Care delivery
Holding company

Care delivery

™Non trading
Non trading
Children’s care homes
Children’s care hotnes
Children’s care homes

Property compaty

Specialist education services
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Registered office

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdoni
United Kingdom

Proportion of
ownership
interest and
voting rights

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%%
100%
190%
100%
180%
100%
100%
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Investments {continucd)

Thetford Trustee LLP Non {rading United Kingdom 100%
Aspris (Troup House) Limited * Education United Kingdom 100%
Aspire Scotland Holdings Limited* Holding company United Kingdom 100%
Aspire Scotland Limited* Children’s care and education UJnited Kingdom 100%
Galaxy I Limited* Children’s care and education United Kingdom 100%
Galaxy UK Leisure Limited* Children’s care and education United Kingdom 100%
SC Topco Limited** Holding company nited Kingdom 100%
SC Bideo Limited®* Holding compary United Kingdom 100%
Natabra Properties Limited** Property company Uniled Kingdom 100%
Sandcastle Care Holdings Limited** Halding company United Kingdam 100%%
Sandeastle Care Limited*#* Chiidren’s carc homes United Kingdom 100%
Portixol UK Limited** Properly company United Kingdom 100%
Aspris (Arden)} Limited Property eompany United Kingdom 100%
Priory Healthcare LLC*** Healthcare UaAl 0%

Unless stated otherwise the registered address of cach subsidiary is: The Forge, Church Street West, Woking,
Surrey, Ingland, GU21 6HT

*Company registered address is: 3840 Mansion house Road, Glasgow, G41 3DW

**Company registered address is) 49 Whitepate Drive, Blackpool, Lancashire, England, FY2 953

* % Aspris Group conirols Priory Healthcare LLC through a combination of contraciual agreements and the ability to direct the fivancial and
operational menagemeat of the entity

Aspris Holdco Limited has given statulory guarantees against all the outstanding liabilities of all wholly owned
subsidiaries as at 31 August 2022. This thereby allowed dermant subsidiavies to be exempt from the requirement to
prepate and file annual accounts under section 394A or the Companies Act, and non-dormant subsidiaries to be
exempl from the annual audit requirement under Scetion 4794 of the Companies Act, for the period ended 31
August 2022,

The Group has control of a 60% interest in Saudi Healthcare ELC (“S[¢”™), an entity registered in K8A, which
operates a Wellbeing Centre in Riyadh. The operation, although important to management’s future plans and
strategy in the region, is not seen as malerial in the context of these Financial Siatements.

During the period the Group loaned £1,1m to SHe, in addition o the £0.1m interest in share capital and £0.3m.
acquired on business combination, SHc did not trade during the peviod and incurred losses of £0.9m, the Group’s
share of these iosses £0.5m have been recognised in operaling costs.

Investments - Cempany

Group

2022

Investments made during period - Cost £m
Asprig Midee Limited 115.1
At 31 August 2022 119.1
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17. Business combinations

Acquisition of subsidiary — Aspris Children’s Services Limited and subsidiaries

On 31 August 2021, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capita! of Priory Education Scrvices Limited
(latterly named Aspris Children’s Sexvices Limited), obtaining control. The principal activity of Aspris Children’s
Services Limited (“*ACSL"} is provision of specialist schools, colleges, children’s homes and fostering. ACSL was
acquired by Aspris Bidco Limiled, a wholly owned subsidiary of Aspris Holdco Limited. This transaction was
undertaken to purchase the children’s seevices and Middle East operations of the Prioty Group, of which ACSL and

its subsidiaries were previously members of.

The 100% sharcholding in ACSL was abtained for cash consideration of £62.2m,

As patt of the acquisition, loans totalling £90.1m between ACSL and its subsidiarics, and Priory Group vere scttled.

The atnounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed ave as set out in the

table below:

£m Book  Fair Value Fair value
Vahie adjusfrients
Assets and liabilities acquired
Property, plant and equipment 134.2 5.0 1392
Right of use assels 1532 0.2) 153.0
Intangible ussets 27.2 15.2 424
Trade and other receivables 13.7 0.1 138
Cash and cash equivalent 1.9 - 19
Lease liabilities (153.2) - (153.2)
Trade and other payables (134.0) - (134.0)
Provisions (0.8) - (0.8)
Deferred tax Jiabilities (3.8) (17.3) (21.1)
Total identifiable assets 384 2.8 41.2
Goodwill - - 21.0
Total consideration 62.2
Satisfied by:
Cash 622
Cash flow analysis:
Cash consideration 622
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired (1.9)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition 60.3
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Business combitations (continued)

‘The fair value of the financial assets includes receivables with a fair value of £12.2m and a gross contractual value
of £12.6m. The best estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash flows not to be cotlected are £0.4m.

The gondwill of £21m arising from the acquisition consisis of the presence of certain intangible asscts, which do not
qualify for separate recognition, such as;

*  Assembled workforee of ACSL, including both the UK and Middle East workforce

+  Aspris’ abilily lo extend the existing relationships acquired with Local Authorities beyond the useful
economic life anticipated at initial acquisition

¢ Development of new relationships in the Middle Easl

None of the geodwill is expected 1o be deductible for income tax purposes.
Acquisition related costs of £2.5m arose as a tesult of the transaction.
Acquisition of subsidiary - SC Topeo Limited and subsidiaries

On 28 January 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the issued shave capitat of SC Topeo Limited (*Sandcastic Care”),
oblaining control, The principal activily of Sandeastle Care is tho provision of therapeutic care homes for children.
Sandcastle Care was acquired to achieve (he creation of a consolidated business in the Waterland group that is
focused on providing children's service. The transaction provides Aspris with greater coverage in the Northwest of
England, where Sandcastle Caves* properties are primarily located.
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(continued)

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and lighilities assumed are as set oul in the

table below:

£m Book If’ﬂir value Fair
Value adjustments value
Assets and liabilities acquired
Property, plant and equipnent 24.4 (13.2) 11.2
Right of usc assets 0.2 - 0.2
Intangible assets 12.0 44.4 56.4
Trade and other receivables 3.8 - 3.8
Cash and cash equivalent 3.6 - 36
Iease liabilities (0.2} - (6.2)
Trade and other payables (2.5} - (2.5)
Income tax ltiability (1.1} - (1.1}
Loans and borrowings (41.3) - (41.3)
Deferred tax liabilities {0.2) (15.9) _ {183
Total identifiable assats L 153 10
Goodwill e - 417
Total consideration ) 61.7
Satisfied by:
Cash ~ 61.7
Cash flow analysis:
Cash consideration 61.7
Less; cash and cash equivalent balances acquired 3.6)
Net eash outflow arising on acquisition S8.1

The fair value of the financial assets inciudes receivables with a fair value of £3 4m and a gross contraclual vatue of

£3.4m.

The goodwill of £47.7m arising from the acquisition consists of the presence of certain intangible assets, which do
not qualify for separate recognition, such as;

*  Assembled workforce of Sandcastle Care.
«  Sandcastie Care’s ability to extend the existing relationships acquired with Local Authorities beyond the
useful economic life aniicipated at initial acquisition.

None of the goodwill is expected fo be deductible for corporation tax purposes.

Acquisition related costs of £3.1m avose as a result of the transaction.
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Business combinations {eonfinned) ;
Acquisition of subsidinry — Aspris (Arden) Limited

On 31 Martch 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Hollybiue Healtheare (Arden) Limited,
latterly renamed Aspris (Arden) Limited cn obtaining control. Its principal aclivity is a property lessor. The
purchase of Hollyblue Healtheare (Arden) Limited enabled the acyuisition of the freehold interests in properties
previousky leased to the Group. This included properties that had previously formed part of the Priory Group’s
residential adult care division. Subsequent to the purchase of Hollyblue (Arden) Limited such properties were
dispased of by the Aspris Group to the Priory Group at fair value.

The amounts recogniscd in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed ave as sef out in the
table below:

£m Book Value i1t ins valme

Assets and labilities aequired

Property, plant and eguipinent 5.5 - 5.5

Trade and other payables 0.1 - {0.1)

Income tax liability 0.1 - (0.1)

Deferred tax labilities - Qe {0.6)

Total identifiable assets 53 ©6 47

Goodwill ) - - 0.6

Totel consideration 33

Satisfied by: ‘)
Cash 5.3 !
Cash flow analysis;

Cash consideration 53

Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired - ‘
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition 5.3

None of the goodiwill is expected to be deductible for corporation tax purposes.

Acquisition related costs of £0.1n1 arose as a resull of the transaction.
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- Business combinations (continned)

Impact of the Acquirees on amounts reported in the statement of compreltensive income

The amounts of tevenue and profit or Joss of the acquirees since acquisition dafe inciuded in the consolidated

slatement of income for the reporting period is as follows:

Aspris  Sandeasfle  Arden

£m £ Lm

Revenue 162.7 16.5 6.0

Operating cost {140.9 (15.5) 0.3

Operating profit before impairment and other losses and exceptional 21.8 1.0 0.3
costs

Impairment and other losses and excepiional costs (8.0) (19.8) 0.0

Operating profit 13.8 (18.8) 0.3

The revenue and profit or Joss of the combined entity for the corrent reporting period as through the acquisition date
for all business combinations that oceurred during the year had been at the beginning of the 12 month trading period

starting 1 September 2021, is as follows:

Revenue

COSts

Current

Prepayments

fm
191.0
Operaling cost YN
Operating profit before impairment and other losses and exceptional 193
Impairment and other losses and exceplional costs (28.3}
Operating profit (5.0)
18, Trade and other receivables
Group Company
31 August 31 August
2022 2022
im £m
Trade receivables 19,7 -
Provision for impairment of trade receivables ©on -
Net trade receivables 19.6 -
Accrued income 0.4 -
1.7 -
Loans receivable from joint venture (note 28) 1.0 -
Other receivables 18 0.2
24.5 0.2

All crent receivables are due within 1 year of balance sheet date, None of these are subject to matevial or significant
credit losses. Credit risk is not considered to be significant given that over 90% of revenue is derived from publicly

funded entities.

Amounts reccivable from joint venture are not subject to inierest and ave repayable on demand.
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19. Cash aml cash equivalents
Group  Company
2022 2022
£an £m
Cash at bank - 18.1 0.7

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and at bank. Cash at bank is held with banks or financial
institution counterparties which are investment grade rated. Management do not expeel any losses from non-
performance of counterpartics.

20, Deferred income

Group

2022

£m

Acquired through business combination 28.9
Deferred during the year 28.8
Recognised duting the year (289
28.8

Deferred income is in respect of services invoiced in advance of delivery and is released as services are delivered.

21. Issued eapital and reserves

Allofted, called up and fully paid shares

2022 2022

No. £000

A Ordinary shares of £1 each 82,851,341 82,851
B Ordinary shares of £1 cach 1,782,603 1,783
C Ordinary sharcs of £1 each 1,232,266 12
85,866,210 84,640
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Issued capifal and reserves {continued)
New shaves allotted

Class No. Consideration
£000
A Ordinary shares of £1 cach! 82,851,341 116,861
B Ordinary shares of £1 each? 1,782,603 2,223
C Ordinary shares of £1 each? 1232266 36
85,866,210 119,120

' A Ordinary shares of £1 cach bave Full voting and payments of dividend rights, right to disiributions alecgside B Ordinary shareholders in
priority to C Ordinary sharehelder, Subject ty a threshold. Rights to distcibutions once the threshold has been surpassed aiongside the B Ordinary
sharcholders and C Ordinary shareholders.

* B Ordinary shares of £1 each huve full voting and payments of dividend rights, right to distribulions alongside A Qrdinary shargholders in
priorily to C Ordinary shareholder, subject to a threshold. Rights o distributions once the threshold has been surpassed alongside the A Ordinary
sharchiolders aind C Ordinary shareholders

¢ Ordinary shares of £1 each have np voting sights, C Ordinary shares have rights to dividends and distributions onge the threshold has been
surpassed alongside the A and B Ordinasy slarefiolders.

22. Loans and borvowings

Group

2022

Non-current loans and borrowings £m
Exleral loans 165.0
Capitalised debt fecs (5.4)
Exiernal borrowings L 1596

The Group entered inta a senior term and revolving facility agreement on 27 August 2021 to facilitate the
acquisition of Sandcastle Cave and future acquisitions. As at the end of the period the drawn senior facilities of
£165.0m are secured over the Group’s assets and carry interest at u variuble margin over the applicable SONIA rate.
The loans are repayable 7 years from the date of cornpletion of the acquisition of ACSL.

External borrowings are recognised at fair value net of transaction costs that are directly atiributable to the credit
facilitics. At the balance sheet date this was £5.4m.

The Group’s Lean facilities are subject to a single financial covenant test whicl is assessed quarterly. This covenant
assesyes the total gross Leverage of the Group as a ratio to proforma LTM EBITDA of the consolidated group at
each quarterly test date. At the balance sheet date the covenant threshold was 7.4x, as at 31 August 2022 the ratio
level wvas materially below this threshold at a level of 4.9x. This equates to £11.6m of headroom expressed in terms
of proforma LTM EBITDA,

As at 31 August 2022 the Group had Jetters of credit in place amounting to £2.3m. This amount is ringfenced within
the Group’s total revelving credit facility of £22m for this purpose, with no other amounts drawn under this facility
as at the batance sheet date. These letters issuced by the Group’s principal bankers to the Group’s insurers, an
employee pension scheme, and 1o support credit granted under supplier contracts.
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(continned)
23, Provisions

Logal

provision

2022

£m

Acquired through business combination 0.8

Charged in income statement 0.4
Used during year e (02)

1.0

24. Trade and other payables

Group  Company

2022 2022

£m £m

Trade payables 3.1 -

Acerued expenses 11.7 -

Amounts due to related partics - 0.5

Social security and other taxes 2.3 B

Other payables 4.4 -

21.5 0.9

Other payables consist of credit balances, funds held on behalf of ADEK. for the operation and investment of the
school operated by the Group end savings held on behalf of young persons,

25. Pension

The Group operates defined contribution peasion schemes. The pension cost charge for the period represents
conlribulivns payuable by the Group to the scheme and amounted 1o £4.5m

26. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of 19%, The
increase in corporation tax to 25% is cxpected to be effective from April 2023, This new rate will be applied to
deferred tux balances which are expected to reverse as at 1 September 2022,

Deferred lax assels have been recognised in respect of all temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax asscts
wihere the Direclors believe it is probable thul these ussets will be recovered.

The movements in deferced tax assets and liabilities (prior to the offsetting of balances within the same jurisdiction
as permiited by [AS 12) during the peried are shown below,
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Deferred tax (continued)

Petails of the deferred tax liability, amounts recognised in the profit or loss and amounts recognised in other
comprehensive income are as follows:

Recognised in Recognised in Recognised in Total
lbusiness income other 31 August
combiuntions compreliensive 2022
(Note 17) income
Intangible asset differences 23,8 (1.3) - 22.5
Tangible asset differences 14.0 03 - 13.7
_ 37.8 (1.6) - 36.2

Deferred tax asset has not been recognised in respect of capilal tax losses carried forward in the UK totalling £2.4m
us there is insufficient evidence es lo their recoverability.

27. Financial instruneents

Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial fiabilitics comprise all assets and liabilities reflected in the statement of financial
position, excluding property, plant and cquipment, intangible assets, deferred tax assets, prepayments and deferréd
tax liabilities.

Group Company

2022 2022

Financial assets £m £m

Investments in subsidiaties - 119.1

Trade and other recelvables 22.8 0.2

Cash and cash equivalent 18.1 0.7
40.9 1200

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 2L5 0.9

Encome tax lHability 0.9 -

Deferred income 28.8 B

Lease liabilities 160.5 -

Loans and borrowings 159.6 -
Provisions 1.0 -

372.3 0.9

There is no difference between the carrying valuc of financial instruments and their fair value. The Group has ne
financial instruments that are measured at fair value,

The Group does not require collateral in respect of financial assets.
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Iinancial instruments (continued)

Financial risk management

The Group is exposed to financial risks in the form of credit, interest and [iquidity risks which arise in the normal
course of business. The primary financial risks that the Group is exposed fo are detailed below:

Credit risk . Cash deposits and Trade receivables
Financial inytruments which potentiafly expose the Group to credit risk consist primarily of cash and (rade receivables.

Cash is only deposited with major financial institutions that satisfy cerlain credit criteria. Credit risk in relation to
trade receivables is not considered to be significant given thaf the vast majority of revenue is derived from publicly
funded education and care services, The Group provides credit to customers in the normal course of business and the
balance sheet is net of allowances of £0.1m for doubtful receivables, The Group measures those allowances at an
amount equal to the lifetime expected credit lasses using both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis
based on the Group’s historical experience and forward-looking information.

Allowances against doubiful debls are recognised against trade receivables based on estimated irrecoverable amounts,
determined by reference o pasi experience of the counterparty. The majority of the Group's allowance for doubtful
debis relales 1o specific trade receivables thal ave nof considered to be recoverable, and management only considers i
appropriate io creaie a collective provision based on the age of the (rade receivable in respect of cerlain types of (rade
receivables,

The aging of trade receivables at 31 August is as follows:

£

Current 4.9
30-60 days 14.0
60-150 days Q0.5
150 days + 0.3
19.7

The Direclors consider thet the carrying amount of frade and other reccivables is approximately equal to their fair
value.

Trade receivables at least 60 days past due for which no loss allowance has beep made at 31 December is £0.7m,

Further to the credit risks described on cash and {rade receivables the Group does not have any significant credit risk
exposure 1o any single counterparty or any group of counterpartics having similar characteristics. The Group defines
counlerparties as having similar characteristics if they ave related entities.

There is no concern over the eredit quality of smounts past due but for which no loss aliowances has been recognised
since the risk is spread over a number of untelated counterparties which include central and local Government. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned
above and cash held by the Group.
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Financial risl management (continued)

Intevest rate rislk — Senior and Revolving credit fucilities comtaining a variable element finked to Srerling Overaight
Index Average

The Group is financed by a combination of Senior and Revolving external credit facilities. The facilities ave
denominated in pounds and are borrowed with interest at a variable margin over the applicable SONIA rate. Senior
loans are tepayable on 31 August 2028, and Revolving facilities are repayable on 31 August 2026.

In addition to assessments required by macro-economic events, the Group monitors jts near term interest rate exposure
on & monthly basis, and longer term exposure on a bi-annual basis. This includes the review of the options available
to it for the hedging of interest rate risk, but currently does not have a hedged component to the interest burden on its
extornal debt. in Hight of prevailing macket condilions, and the high cost of hedging instraments, the Directors belfeve
the Group has sufficient capacity to address the risk of inferest rate rises.

Based on modelling performed, a 100 basis point shift in SONIA rates would have a £1.65m increase or decrease on
interest payments due on the Group’s external debt. A 350 basis point shift (being the maxhnum lkely change in
interest rates aver the year from the period end) would have an jmpact of £5.8m on interest payments due on the
Group’s external debt,

Liquidity risk

The Group prepares both annual and short-lerm cash flow forecasts retlecting known commitments and anticipated
projects. Borrowing facililies are utilised as necessary to finance requirements. The Group has sufficient available
bank facilities and cash flows from profits to fund current commitments.

The following table shows the contractual cash flow maturities for financial [iabilities:

Total  0-1years 2-5years 5+ ycars

Trade and other payubles 216 216
Borrowings 16540 165.0
Lease liabilitics ] _ 3038 15.5 57.0 231.3

Faraign currency risk

Substantially all of the Group’s operations are in the UK and as such foreign currency risk is not deemed significant.
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Capital Risk Management

The Group’s ohjective when managing its capital is to ensurc that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern whilst maximising returns for stakeholders through the oplimisation of debt and equity. The Group’s
capital struclure s as follonws:

2022
£m
Cash 18.1
Borrowings! (165.0)
Lease liabilities (160.5)
Equity 92.0
). Lixcluding acerued interest and capitalised debt fees
Analysis of net debt
Business Cash Other
Combinations Now Interest movement?
£m £m £ £m £m
Cash 55 12.6 - - 18.1
_Borrowings! (413} (1237 - - (165.0)
Net DPebt (excluding (35.8) {111.1) - - (146.9)
Lease liahilities)
_l.ease liabilities (153.4) 15.3 R 011 X))] (11.9} (160.5}
Net Debt (193.0) (92.0) (10.5) (11.9) (307.4)

1 Excluding accrued interest and capitalised debt fees of £5.4m
2. Relates to non-cash movements in lease l{abilities - sce note 13 for delails

28. Related parties

Ultimate parent and confrolling party

The Cottipany’s immediate parent is Standbyco 35 B.V

The uliimate parent is Waterland Private Equity Investments B.V

The uliimate controlling party is Waterland Private Equity Investments B.V

Asptis Holdeo Limited is the smailest and largest company tor which consolidated financial statenents are prepared
for public use,
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Related parties (continued)

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated
on consolidation and ate not disclosed in this note.

The Group is owed £1.4m from Saudi Healthcare LLC, a related party as a joint venture lnvesiment which is equity
sccounted for in these siatements, there is no interest charge, and this balance is repayable on demand. Held against
this receivable is a proviston of £0.4m for the Group’s share of the initial losses incurred over the invesiment amount
made in Saudi Healtheare LLC. The net of the amounts owed of £1.0m is detailed in note 18,

‘The Group paid a mapagement charge of £30,000 to WPEF VII! Hoiding Co#iperatief W.A, a related party through
common control,

Prior to the acquisition of Aspris Group (note 17) Priary Tiducation Services Limited (“PESL”) was a pait of the Priory
Group. At the Hme of the transaction Priory Group was a related party. Whilst the Group’s operations were fargely
autonomous from those of the wider Priory Group, Aspris was the recipient of central support services provided to it
by the Priory Group. These services continued under a transitional services arrangement agyeed at the time of the
Group’s acquisition of PESL. This transitional agreement provided for back office support, including use of systems
and software, human resources support, estates and aspects of financial reporting assistance, This transitional stage
included the implementation of Aspris’ own standatone systems and support infrastructure, the process of which was
completed by 30th November 2022, wilh all services received under this transitional arrangement ceased to be
provided from that date.

On 28 Janumy 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of SC Tepeo Limited (note 17), obtaining
control. SC Topeo 1.imiled was a related party by the nature of comman ownership. One of the principal purposes of
the acquisition tas 1o achicve the creation of a consolidated business in the Waterland proup that is focused on
providing children’s service,

During the period an smount of £0.4m was advanced to directors at an interest rate egual to the HMRC official rate
of interest, on a term concurrent with the period with which the Ditectors remain sharcholders in the Group. Interest
is paid by the Directors annually and early repayment of any portion of the outstanding balance is peymitted at any
time. During the period repayments of £0.2m were made, with the remaining £0.2m outstanding at the period end
being included in other receivables (note 18)
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Key management pevsonne!

Key menagemend personnel arc those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
conirelling the activilies ol the Group.

2022

£000

Directors’ emoluments 1,526
_Directors’ post-employment benefits 8

Total emeluments for the highest paid director were £1,153,000, this included a one-ofl non-reeurring reward of
£305,000 relating to the execptionally high level of corporate transactions and reorganisation activity successfully
completed during the period. The value of the Company®s contributions paid to a defined contribution pension
scheme in respect of the highest paid director amounted to £4,000,

The nymber of Direetors to whom retirement beneflts are accrued under money purchase pension schemes is 2,

19, Events after reporling date
Acquisition of BHIS Holdings Limited

Following the close of the reporting period, and consistent with the Group siralegy of expanding its specialist
education division, the Group completed the acquisition of 2 specialist education provider in the UK, BHIS
Heldings Limited, on 1 March 2023.

The acquired business, and its wholly owned subsidiaries, provide specialist education for up to approximatcly 100
primary and sccondary school sged young people in the East of Englaad,

To support this acquisition, and the Group’s broader growth objectives, the Group entered into an extension of its
available externai debt facilities with its existing lendets. This new growth facility was agreed and cffective from 8
February 2023, ‘These facilities provide an additional £25m of comniitted available debt capacity to support the
growth projects of the Group.

In addition, as part of the above acquisition the Group issued additicnal equity capital te its shareholders in March
2023, with the above acquisition being funded through a combination of a partial drawdown of the new growth debt
facility and this new equity capital raise.

73




